
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3910 if you need it in large print, audio 
or another format.

Agenda

Civic Centre, 
Arnot Hill Park, 

Arnold,
Nottinghamshire, 

NG5 6LU

Planning Committee

Date: Wednesday 18 May 2016

Time: 6.00 pm

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Centre.

For any further information please contact: 

Lyndsey Parnell

Senior Elections and Members' Services Officer

0115 901 3910

Public Document Pack



Planning Committee
Membership

Chair Councillor John Truscott

Vice-Chair Councillor Barbara Miller

Councillor Michael Adams
Councillor Pauline Allan
Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor Sandra Barnes
Councillor Chris Barnfather
Councillor Alan Bexon
Councillor Bob Collis
Councillor Kevin Doyle
Councillor Gary Gregory
Councillor Meredith Lawrence
Councillor Marje Paling
Councillor Colin Powell
Councillor Paul Stirland
Councillor Paul Wilkinson



AGENDA Page

1.  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions.

2.  To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 27 
April 2016.

5 - 16

Planning Committee Protocol. 
3.  Declaration of Interests

4.  Application No. 2015/1376- Land at Chase Farm (Former Gedling 
Colliery), adjacent to Arnold Lane and Land off Lambley Lane, Gedling, 
Nottinghamshire.

21 - 96

5.  Variation of S106 Planning Obligations- Spring Lane, Lambley 97 - 98

6.  Tree Preservation Order- Whittingham Road, Mapperley. 99 - 114

7.  Planning Delegation Panel Action Sheets 115 - 124

8.  Future Planning Applications 125 - 126

9.  Any other items which the Chair considers urgent.



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES
PLANNING COMMITTEE

Wednesday 27 April 2016

Councillor John Truscott (Chair)

In Attendance: Councillor Barbara Miller
Councillor Michael Adams
Councillor Peter Barnes
Councillor Sandra Barnes
Councillor Chris Barnfather
Councillor Alan Bexon

Councillor Bob Collis
Councillor Gary Gregory
Councillor Meredith Lawrence
Councillor Marje Paling
Councillor Colin Powell
Councillor Paul Wilkinson

Absent: Councillor Pauline Allan, Councillor Paul Stirland and 
Councillor Kevin Doyle

Officers in Attendance: C Goodall, F Whyley and N Morley

159   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS. 

Councillors Parr and Hewson attended as substitutes for Councillors 
Stirland and Doyle, who had given their apologies for absence.

160   TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 06 APRIL 2016. 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record.

161   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

The Chair declared a non-pecuniary interest, on behalf of all members of 
the Committee, in application number 2016/0253 on the grounds that 
Gedling Borough Council is both the applicant and the owner of the site.

162   APPLICATION NO. 2016/0068- 9 ROSEGROVE AVENUE, ARNOLD, 
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE, NG5 8DU 

Construction of a detached bungalow and associated alterations to 
existing boundary and parking arrangement.

RESOLVED to REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION: 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



1. The proposed development by reason of its scale and design 
would result in an overintensive development of the site that 
would be detrimental to the visual appearance of the area and 
incongruous on the streetscene.  The proposal would therefore 
not accord with the following local policies:- Policy 10 'Design and 
Enhancing Local Identity' of the Aligned Core Strategy 2014 and 
Saved Policies H7 'Residential Development on unidentified sites 
within the Urban Area and the Defined Village Boundaries' and 
ENV1 'Development Criteria' of the Gedling Borough Council 
Replacement Local Plan.  The proposed development would also 
fail to accord with paragraph 63 of the National PPF which seeks 
to ensure that new development is of good design.

2. In the opinion of the Borough Council, by reason of the scale and 
bulk of the proposed bungalow on elevated land and the proximity 
to neighbouring residential amenity, the proposed development 
would result in an undue overbearing and overshadowing impact 
on no.9 Grenville Rise. The proposal would therefore be contrary 
to the aims of Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Council 
Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

163   APPLICATION NO. 2016/0069- LAND ADJACENT 219 STANDHILL 
ROAD, CARLTON, NOTTINGHAMSHIRE, NG4 1LF 

Construction of two self-contained flats.

RESOLVED to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, subject to the 
following conditions:

Conditions

1. The development must be begun not later than three years 
beginning with the date of this permission.

2. This permission shall be read in accordance with the revised 
plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 4 March 2016, 
ref. 'Proposed Layouts, Elevations, Site Layout, Block and 
Location Plans' 1109 - 101 - Rev A. The development shall 
thereafter be undertaken in accordance with these plans unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

3. Before development commences, samples of all external 
materials to be used in the development shall be first submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with 

Page 6



those details unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority.

4. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority details of the 
means of surfacing of the unbuilt on portions of the site, including 
details of a pedestrian access from Standhill Road. The 
development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with 
those details unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority.

5. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority details of the 
means of enclosure of the site. The development shall thereafter 
be carried out in accordance with those details unless otherwise 
agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

6. The proposed car parking spaces shall be surfaced and marked 
out in permanent materials before the development hereby 
permitted is first brought into use, and the spaces shall not 
thereafter be used for any other purpose other than the parking of 
vehicles.

7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into 
use until a dropped vehicular footway crossing is available for use 
and constructed in accordance with the Highway Authority 
specification to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

8. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into 
use until all drives and any parking or turning areas are surfaced 
in a hard bound material (not loose gravel) for a minimum of 5.5 
metres behind the highway boundary. The surfaced drives and 
any parking or turning areas shall then be maintained in such 
hard bound material for the life of the development.

9. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be brought into 
use until the access driveway/parking/turning areas is constructed 
with provision to prevent the unregulated discharge of surface 
water from the driveway/parking/turning areas to the public 
highway in accordance with details first submitted to and 
approved in writing by the LPA. The provision to prevent the 
unregulated discharge of surface water to the public highway 
shall then be retained for the life of the development.

10. Before development commences, details of the bin storage area 
including location and design shall be submitted to the Local 

Page 7



Planning Authority for approval. The development shall thereafter 
be carried out in accordance with those details unless otherwise 
agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

Reasons

1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. For the avoidance of doubt and to define the terms of this 
permission.

3. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the 
aims of Policy 10 of the Gedling Borough Council Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

4. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the 
aims of Policy 10 of the Gedling Borough Council Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

5. To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the 
aims of Policy 10 of the Gedling Borough Council Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

6. In the interests of highway safety.

7. In the interests of highway safety.

8. To reduce the possibility of deleterious materials being deposited 
on the public highway.

9. To ensure surface water from the site is not deposited on the 
public highway causing dangers to road users.

10. For the interests of residential amenity.

Reasons for Decision

In the opinion of the Borough Council the proposed development is 
visually acceptable, results in no significant impact on neighbouring 
residential properties and amenities and has no adverse impact upon 
the highway network. The proposal therefore accords with Policy 10 
(Design and Enhancing Local Identity) of the Aligned Core Strategy 
2014 and saved Policies ENV1 (Development Criteria) and H7 
(Residential Development on Unidentified Sites in the Urban Area) of the 
Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan.

Notes to Applicant

Page 8



The proposal makes it necessary to construct a vehicular crossing over 
a footway of the public highway. These works shall then be constructed 
to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority. You are, therefore, required 
to contact the County Council's Customer Services to arrange for these 
works on telephone 0300 500 80 80 to arrange for these works to be 
carried out.

The attached permission is for development which will involve building 
up to, or close to, the boundary of the site.  Your attention is drawn to 
the fact that if you should need access to neighbouring land in another 
ownership in order to facilitate the construction of the building and its 
future maintenance you are advised to obtain permission from the owner 
of the land for such access before beginning your development.

The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the 
applicant in accordance with paragraphs 186 to 187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. Discussions have taken place during the 
consideration of the application to address adverse impacts identified by 
officers and/or address concerns raised in letters of representation 
submitted in connection with the proposal. The application for planning 
permission is subsequently approved subject to conditions.

The applicant is advised that all planning permissions granted on or after 
16th October 2015 may be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL). Full details of CIL are available on the Council's website. The 
proposed development has been assessed and it is the Council's view 
that CIL is not payable on the development hereby approved as the 
development type proposed is zero rated in this location.

164   APPLICATION NO. 2016/0253- LAND (2) AT PARK ROAD/BROAD 
VALLEY DRIVE, BESTWOOD, NOTTINGHAMSHIRE. 

Residential development for two dwellings.

RESOLVED to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION, subject to the 
following conditions:

Conditions

1. An application for approval of all the reserved matters 
(appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) shall be made to the 
local planning authority before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission.

Page 9



2. The development hereby approved shall be begun within two 
years from the date of the approval of the last reserved matter to 
be approved.

3. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Borough Council detailed plans, 
sections and elevations of all buildings.

4. The proposed dwellings shall not be brought into use until the 
details approved as part of the plans and particulars to be 
submitted for the application for the approval of reserved matters 
referred to in condition 1, 2 and 3 above have been implemented, 
unless other timescales are prior agreed in writing by the Borough 
Council.

5. Before development (including site preparation) is commenced an 
Arboricultural Method Statement, including details of tree 
protection fencing and a tree protection plan, to protect the 
existing trees, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Borough Council as Local Planning Authority.  Once these 
details are approved the development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and the trees shall be 
protected at all times during site preparation and development.

6. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Borough Council a landscape plan of the 
site showing any proposed planting as well as details of the 
existing planting to be removed or retained. The approved details 
shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
substantial completion of the development and any planting 
material which becomes diseased or dies within five years of the 
completion of the development shall be replaced in the next 
planting season by the applicants or their successors in title.

7. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Borough Council precise details of the 
materials to be used in the external elevations of the 
development. Once approved the development shall be carried 
out in accordance with these details.

8. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Borough Council details of the means of 
enclosure of the site. The approved means of enclosure shall be 
erected before the dwellings are first occupied and shall 
thereafter be retained unless alternative means of enclosure are 
agreed in writing by the Borough Council.

Page 10



9. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Borough Council details of the means of 
surfacing of the unbuilt on portions of the site. The approved 
means of surfacing shall be erected before the dwellings are first 
occupied.

10. The formal written approval of Gedling Borough Council is 
required prior to commencement of any development with regard 
to parking and turning facilities, access widths, gradients, 
surfacing, visibility splays and drainage (Hereinafter referred to as 
reserved matters). All details submitted to Gedling Borough 
Council for approval shall comply with the County Council's 
current 6'cs Highway Design and shall be implemented as 
approved.

11. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of surface 
water and foul drainage. Once approved the development shall 
be carried out in accordance with these details.

12. Before development is commenced there shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Borough Council details of any 
proposed alterations to the existing ground levels of the site and 
details of the height of proposed floor levels of the proposed 
dwellings relative to the existing levels. Once approved the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with these details.

13. No works permitted under Class A, B, C, D or E of Part 1 
Schedule 2 of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 2008 (or in 
any provision equivalent to that Class in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking and re-enacting that Order) shall be undertaken without 
the prior written permission of the Borough Council as local 
planning authority.

14. Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, 
development must not commence until the following has been 
complied with: Site Characterisation:An assessment of the nature 
and extent of any potential contamination has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This 
assessment must be undertaken by a competent person, and 
shall assess any contamination on the site, whether or not it 
originates on the site.  Moreover, it must include; a survey of the 
extent, scale and nature of contamination and; an assessment of 
the potential risks to: human health, property, adjoining land, 

Page 11



controlled waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and 
ancient monuments. Submission of Remediation Scheme: Where 
required, a detailed remediation scheme (to bring the site to a 
condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable 
risks to critical receptors) should be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include 
all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and 
remediation criteria, an appraisal of remedial options, and 
proposal of the preferred option(s), and a timetable of works and 
site management procedures. The assessment should be carried 
out in line with current guidance CLR11 and the appropriate 
British Standards (i.e. BS10175).

15. In the event that remediation is required to render the 
development suitable for use, the agreed remediation scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved timetable 
of works.  Prior to occupation of any building(s) a Verification 
Report (that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation 
carried out) must be submitted and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.

16. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 
out the approved development that was not previously identified it 
must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority and once the Local Planning Authority has identified the 
part of the site affected by the unexpected contamination 
development must be halted on that part of the site. An 
assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the 
requirements above, and where remediation is necessary a 
remediation scheme, together with a timetable for its 
implementation and verification reporting, must be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
assessment should be carried out in line with current guidance 
CLR11 and the appropriate British Standards (i.e. BS10175).

Reasons

1. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

3. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

Page 12



4. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

5. In the interests of good arboricultural practice and to ensure that 
the details of the development are acceptable, in accordance with 
the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy (September 
2014).

6. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

7. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

8. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

9. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

10. In the interest of highway safety.

11. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

12. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of Policy 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014).

13. To ensure the details of the development are satisfactory, in 
accordance with the aims of policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough 
Council Replacement Local Plan (Certain Saved Policies) 2014.

14. Because the site has had a history of 'industrial' land use 
(agriculture) that is a potentially contaminative use. Additionally, 
the Borough Council is aware that assessments carried out during 
the re-development of the neighbouring site revealed made 
ground to depth.

15. Because the site has had a history of 'industrial' land use 
(agriculture) that is a potentially contaminative use. Additionally, 
the Borough Council is aware that assessments carried out during 

Page 13



the re-development of the neighbouring site revealed made 
ground to depth.

16. Because the site has had a history of 'industrial' land use 
(agriculture) that is a potentially contaminative use. Additionally, 
the Borough Council is aware that assessments carried out during 
the re-development of the neighbouring site revealed made 
ground to depth.

Reasons for Decision

In the opinion of the Borough Council the proposed development will 
result in no undue impact on the amenities of neighbours, the character 
and appearance of the area or on highway safety. The application is 
therefore in accordance with Policies 8 and 10 of the Aligned Core 
Strategy (September 2014), Policies ENV1, H7 and T10 of the Gedling 
Borough Council Replacement Local Plan (Certain Saved Policies) 2014 
and advice contained within the NPPF (2012).

Notes to Applicant

The applicant is advised that all planning permissions granted on or after 
16th October 2015 may be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL). Full details of CIL are available on the Council's website. The 
proposed development has been assessed and it is the Council's view 
that CIL IS PAYABLE on the development hereby approved.  The actual 
amount of CIL payable will be calculated when a decision is made on the 
subsequent reserved matters application.

The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may 
contain unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining 
feature is encountered during development, this should be reported 
immediately to The Coal Authority on 0845 762   6848. Further 
information is also available on The Coal Authority website at 
www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, 
current and future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal 
Authority's Property Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at 
www.groundstability.com.

The proposal makes it necessary to relocate the Parish Council sign in 
order to facilitate accesses to the proposed dwellings.

Planning Statement - The Borough Council has worked positively and 
proactively with the applicant in accordance with paragraphs 186 to 187 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. During the processing of the 
application there were no problems for which the Local Planning 
Authority had to seek a solution in relation to this application.

The attached permission is for development which will involve building 
up to, or close to, the boundary of the site.  Your attention is drawn to 

Page 14



the fact that if you should need access to neighbouring land in another 
ownership in order to facilitate the construction of the building and its 
future maintenance you are advised to obtain permission from the owner 
of the land for such access before beginning your development.

165   FIVE YEAR HOUSING LAND SUPPLY ASSESSMENT 2015 

Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager, 
which had been circulated prior to the meeting, informing Planning 
Committee of the update to the Council’s Five Year Housing Land 
Supply Assessment.

RESOLVED:

To note the content of the Five Year Housing Land Supply Assessment 
2015.

166   PLANNING DELEGATION PANEL ACTION SHEETS 

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

167   FUTURE PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

The interim Head of Planning informed the Committee of an additional 
future planning application relating to the Gedling Colliery site, which 
was expected to be considered by Committee on the 18th of May 2016.

RESOLVED:

To note the information.

168   ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT. 

None.

The meeting finished at 6.35 pm

Signed by Chair:
Date:

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE PROTOCOL

Introduction

1. This protocol is intended to ensure that planning decisions made at the Planning 
Committee meeting are reached, and are seen to be reached, in a fair, open and 
impartial manner, and that only relevant planning matters are taken into account.

2. Planning Committee is empowered by the Borough Council, as the democratically 
accountable decision maker, to determine planning applications in accordance with its 
constitution.  In making legally binding decisions therefore, it is important that the 
committee meeting is run in an ordered way, with Councillors, officers and members of 
the public understanding their role within the process.

3. If a Councillor has any doubts about the application of this Protocol to their own 
circumstances they should seek advice from the Council Solicitor and Monitoring 
Officer as soon as possible and preferably well before any meeting takes place at 
which they think the issue might arise.

4. This protocol should be read in conjunction with the Council;s Member’s Code of 
Conduct, Code of Practice for Councillors in dealing with Planning Applications, 
briefing note on predetermination and the Council’s Constitution.

Disclosable Pecuniary and Non- Pecuniary Interests 

5. The guidance relating to this is covered in the Council’s Member’s Code of Conduct 
and Code of Practice for Councillors in dealing with Planning Applications.

6. If a Councillor requires advice about whether they need to declare an interest, they 
should seek advice from the Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer as soon as 
possible and preferably well before any meeting takes place at which they think the 
issue might arise.

Pre-determination and Predisposition 

7. Councillors will often form an initial view (a predisposition) about a planning 
application early on in its passage through the system whether or not they have been 
lobbied. Under Section 25(2) of the Localism Act 2011 a Councillor is not to be taken 
to have had, or to have appeared to have had, a closed mind when making a decision 
just because the decision-maker had previously done anything that directly or 
indirectly indicated what view the decision-maker took, or would or might take in 
relation to a matter, and, the matter was relevant to the decision. 

8. This provision recognises the role of Councillors in matters of local interest and 
debate, but Councillors who are members of the Planning Committee taking part in a 
decision on a planning matter should not make up their minds how to vote prior to 
consideration of the matter by the Planning Committee and therefore should not 

Page 17

Agenda Annex



comment or make any commitment in advance as to how they intend to vote which 
might indicate that they have a closed mind (predetermination).

9. If a Councillor has made up their mind prior to the meeting, or have made public 
comments which indicate that they might have done, and is not able to reconsider 
their previously held view, then they will not be able to participate on the matter. The 
Councillor should declare that they do not intend to vote because they have (or could 
reasonably be perceived as having) judged the matter elsewhere.  The Councillor will 
be then not be entitled to speak on the matter at the Planning Committee, unless they 
register to do so as part of the public speaking provision.  For advice on pre-
determination and predisposition, Councillors should refer to the Code of Practice for 
Councillors in dealing with Planning Applications in the Council’s Constitution, and 
seek the advice of the Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer.

Lobbying 

10.The guidance relating to this is covered in the Code for dealing with Planning 
Applications.

11. If a Councillor requires advice about being lobbied, they should seek advice from the 
Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer as soon as possible and preferably well before 
any meeting takes place at which they think the issue might arise.

Roles at Planning Committee

12.The role of Councillors at committee is not to represent the views of their constituents, 
but to consider planning applications in the interests of the whole Borough.  When 
voting on applications, Councillors may therefore decide to vote against the views 
expressed by their constituents.  Councillors may also request that their votes are 
recorded.

13.The role of Officers at Planning Committee is to advise the Councillors on professional 
matters, and to assist in the smooth running of the meeting.  There will normally be a 
senior Planning Officer, plus a supporting Planning Officer, a senior Legal Officer and 
a Member Services Officer in attendance, who will provide advice on matters within 
their own professional expertise.

14. If they have questions about a development proposal, Councillors are encouraged to 
contact the case Officer in advance.  The Officer will then provide advice and answer 
any questions about the report and the proposal, which will result in more efficient use 
of the Committees time and more transparent decision making.

Speaking at Planning Committee

15.Planning Committee meetings are in public and members of the public are welcome to 
attend and observe; however, they are not allowed to address the meeting unless they 
have an interest in a planning application and follow the correct procedure.

16.Speaking at Planning Committee is restricted to applicants for planning permission,  
residents and residents’ associations who have made written comments to the Council 

Page 18



about the application and these have been received before the committee report is 
published. Professional agents representing either applicants or residents are not 
allowed to speak on their behalf. Anyone intending to speak at Committee must 
register to do so in writing, providing name and contact details, by 5pm three working 
days before the Committee meeting.  As most Committee meetings are currently held 
on Wednesdays, this is usually 5pm on the Friday before. A maximum of 3 minutes 
per speaker is allowed, unless extended at the Chair of the Committee’s discretion, so 
where more than one person wishes to address the meeting, all parties with a 
common interest should normally agree who should represent them or split the three 
minutes between them. No additional material or photographs will be allowed to be 
presented to the committee, and Councillors are not allowed to ask questions of 
speakers.

17.Other than as detailed above, no person is permitted to address the Planning 
Committee and interruptions to the proceedings will not be tolerated. Should the 
meeting be interrupted, the Chair of the Committee will bring the meeting to order. In 
exceptional circumstances the Chair of the Committee can suspend the meeting, or 
clear the chamber and continue behind closed doors, or adjourn the meeting to a 
future date.

18.Where members of the public wish to leave the chamber before the end of the 
meeting, they should do so in an orderly and respectful manner, refraining from talking 
until they have passed through the chamber doors, as talking within the foyer can 
disrupt the meeting.

Determination of planning applications

19.Councillors will then debate the motion and may ask for clarification from officers.  
However, if there are issues which require factual clarification, normally these should 
be directed to the case Officer before the Committee meeting, not at the meeting itself.  
After Councillors have debated the application, a vote will be taken. 

20.Whilst Officers will provide advice and a recommendation on every application and 
matter considered, it is the responsibility of Councillors, acting in the interests of the 
whole Borough, to decide what weight to attach to the advice given and to the 
considerations of each individual application.  In this way, Councillors may decide to 
apply different weight to certain issues and reach a decision contrary to Officer advice.  
In this instance, if the Officer recommendation has been moved and seconded but 
fails to be supported, or if the recommendation is not moved or seconded, then this 
does not mean that the decision contrary to Officer advice has been approved; this 
needs to be a separate motion to move and must be voted on.  If, in moving such a 
motion Councillors require advice about the details of the motion, the meeting can be 
adjourned for a short time to allow members and Officers to draft the motion, which 
will include reasons for the decision which are relevant to the planning considerations 
on the application, and which are capable of being supported and substantiated 
should an appeal be lodged.  Councillors may move that the vote be recorded and, in 
the event of a refusal of planning permission, record the names of Councillors who 
would be willing to appear if the refusal was the subject of an appeal. 
Oct 2015

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Application Number: 2015/1376

Location:
Land At Chase Farm (Former Gedling Colliery), Adjacent 
To Arnold Lane And Land Off Lambley Lane, Gedling, 
Nottinghamshire.

NOTE: 
 This map is provided only for purposes of site location and should not be read as an up to date representation of the area around the site.
Reproduced with the permission of the Controller of H.M.S.O. Crown Copyright No. LA 100021248
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution of civil proceedings

Page 21

Agenda Item 4.



Report to Planning Committee

Application Number: 2015/1376

Location: Land At Chase Farm (Former Gedling Colliery), Adjacent 
To Arnold Lane And Land Off Lambley Lane, Gedling, 
Nottinghamshire.

Proposal: Demolition of existing structures and phased development 
of 1,050 dwellings, local centre with retail units and health 
centre, and new primary school. Full planning permission 
for phase 1 to comprise the erection of 506 no. dwellings 
(2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom houses and flats), vehicular 
access from Arnold Lane, internal roads and all 
associated infrastructure. Outline planning permission for 
subsequent phases, all matters reserved except for 
indicative access to the sites from phase 1, and future 
accesses from Gedling Access Road.

Applicant: Mr Peter Shambrook

Agent: Mr David Alderson

Case Officer: David Gray

Executive Summary

The application seeks planning permission for the development of up to 1,050 
dwellings, a local centre with retail units and health centre, and a new primary 
school. Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 to comprise the 
erection of 506 no. dwellings (2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom houses and flats); 
vehicular access from Arnold Lane; internal roads, and all associated 
infrastructure. This Phase is further split into Phase 1a and 1b, with Phase 1a 
limited to 315 homes and a restriction on commencement of Phase 1b until 
the completion of the Gedling Access Road (GAR). Outline planning 
permission is sought for Phase 2, comprising a maximum of 544 dwellings (2, 
3, 4 and 5 bedroom houses and flats), a local centre, a primary school and 
public open space. All matters are reserved except for indicative access 
points between Phase 1 and all subsequent phases, and future accesses from 
the GAR. Phase 2 covers the northern and eastern most areas of the site, and 

Page 22



the separate parcel of land located off Lambley Lane. 

The main issues to be considered in this application are: 

 the principle of residential development with a local centre and school on 
the site;

 the contribution the development would make to delivering local housing 
needs; contributing significantly to Gedling’s requirement to deliver 7,250 
homes by 2028;

 impact on neighbouring residential amenity; 
 the impact on existing and future road infrastructure;
 environmental impacts – in particular landscape and ecology;
 the socio-economic impacts of the development; and
 the balance of achieving a viable scheme weighed against policy 

requirements
______________________________________________________________

The principle of development on the site for the proposed uses has been 
developed through various iterations of local policy over many years and 
aligns with current local and national policy. Policy H2 of the Gedling Borough 
Council Replacement Local Plan (adopted 2005)identifies the application site 
as a mixed use allocation for 1120 dwellings. 

The Gedling Borough Aligned Core Strategy (GBACS), adopted in 2014, sets 
out a housing target of 7,250 dwellings in Gedling Borough between 2011 and 
2028. In order to meet this target the GBACS adopts a strategy of urban 
concentration with regeneration. Within the hierarchy to be used to identify 
sites the top priority is to locate development within or on the edge of the built 
up area of Nottingham. The proposed development site therefore accords with 
the highest priority site in the housing hierarchy, would contribute to a 
significant proportion of housing required in the Borough and would act as a 
catalyst for regeneration in this area. Furthermore, the development is located 
on brownfield land which lessens the need for Green Belt release in order to 
deliver the Borough’s housing needs. The development will also provide 10% 
affordable housing (totalling 105 homes) which will make an important 
contribution to affordable housing need in particular. 

The development supports the requirement for delivery of the Gedling Access 
Road (GAR) through private and public partnership (which achieved planning 
permission reference: 2014/0915). The GAR is a major piece of infrastructure 
that is necessary to facilitate future economic growth. The GAR would ensure 

Page 23



that the traffic generated by the development would not over-burden the local 
road infrastructure. 

Early in the development of the scheme significant highway modelling work 
was undertaken to determine the impact of the proposed development on the 
existing local highway network. In particular it looked at how much 
development can be accommodated on the local highway network prior to the 
construction and opening of the GAR. The assessment work determined that 
315 dwellings could be accommodated on the existing local highway network 
prior to the construction and opening of the GAR. The 315 dwellings would be 
accessed from Arnold Lane, following improvements to the existing access 
point to the household recycling site. The development is therefore phased to 
ensure no more than 315 dwellings are delivered before the GAR is complete. 

In terms of height, scale, massing and design the proposed development is 
considered acceptable in policy terms. The proposed development would not 
result in any significant undue impact on the residential amenity of nearby 
properties. 

The impacts from the scheme are considered through technical assessments 
within the Environmental Statement (ES). The ES is considered to be a 
reasonable assessment of the likely significant environmental effects of the 
proposals and provides a suitable basis for assessment. Suitable mitigation 
has been negotiated and safeguarded by appropriate conditions to address 
environmental concerns after lengthy and in-depth considerations from key 
stakeholders and statutory bodies. Construction impacts have also been 
considered. It is felt that these can be adequately managed through a 
Construction Environmental Management Plan, which is suggested to be 
conditioned. 

Whilst existing trees and green spaces would be removed as a consequence 
of this large scale development, the proposal provides a generous green 
infrastructure (GI) framework creating new improved habitats and leisure 
areas and retains much of a historic tree belt that runs along the old mineral 
railway line. In total, approximately 18% of the site will be public open space. 
This far exceeds the policy requirement of 10%.
 
Breeding birds have been identified on-site; however impacts are concluded 
as not significant. The development requires the loss of habitat from the 
Gedling Colliery Local Wildlife Site (LWS) and other habitats on site. The 
applicant has worked closely with the Ecology Officer to provide ecological 
mitigation as part of the scheme including the provision of replacement habitat 
for the LWS on-site, new hedgerow planting, and new ‘blue and green’ 
corridors. Overall there will be a net loss of 69.7 biodiversity units, which 

Page 24



cannot be mitigated on-site. However, it is considered that this adverse impact 
is outweighed by the substantial benefits of the scheme, as set out in the main 
report. 

The scheme would deliver much needed community infrastructure, including a 
primary school, local shops and health centre, to support the establishment of 
a new community and meet existing needs. It would also contribute towards 
job provision and economic regeneration.

The National Planning Policy Framework policy on viability states that 
decision-taking on individual schemes does not normally require an 
assessment of viability; however viability can be important where planning 
obligations or other costs are being introduced, such as at this site, and local 
planning authorities should look to be flexible in applying policy requirements 
wherever possible. The viability of the development has been independently 
assessed and found acceptable. Given the contributions required by the 
scheme in the form of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), the GAR 
(substantially supported by public funding) and other S106 requirements, an 
on-site affordable housing contribution of 10% is deemed appropriate to 
achieve a viable development that can be delivered, as set out in the main 
report.

Only 17 letters of representation were received. Concerns were raised relating 
to the impact on the existing road infrastructure on Arnold Lane and within the 
Phoenix Ward, in particular, prior to the completion of the GAR. The road 
layout has been guided by extensive consultation with the County Highway 
Authority to meet their standards for safe access and circulation. A Travel 
Plan forms part of the application which includes a number of measures (set 
out in the main report) to reduce impacts on the nearby road network from 
new residents of the scheme. As set out above, the number of houses to be 
delivered prior to the completion of the GAR has been modelled and will be 
capped at 315 units by condition, in order to mitigate impacts on the existing 
road network. Once the GAR is complete normal transport movements are 
expected to move away from Arnold Lane, including many of those linked to 
the residents of the new development.  

The proposal has been assessed against all relevant policy – the Gedling 
Borough Council Aligned Core Strategy, the Gedling Borough Council 
Replacement Local Plan, and the National Planning Policy Framework. In 
addition, regard has been had to the Gedling Borough Council Affordable 
Housing SPD, the Gedling Borough Council Car Parking Provision for 
Residential Dwellings SPD, the Gedling Borough Council Car Air Quality SPD, 
the 6C’s Highways Design Guide. At County Level regard has also been had 
to the Nottinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan.  

Page 25



In this case it is considered appropriate that any planning approval should be 
subject to the landowner (the Homes and Communities Agency) and the 
developer entering into a s106 agreement with Gedling Borough Council and 
Nottinghamshire County Council to secure the provision of, or payment of 
contributions towards, integrated transport, health, education, library 
contributions, air quality mitigation, local employment agreements and 
affordable housing. 

Officers recommend that Planning Committee approve the application, subject 
to conditions pending satisfactory agreement under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990. 

If members are minded to approve the application it is also requested that 
authority is delegated to the Head of Planning / Corporate Director, on behalf 
of the Council in consultation with Legal Services, to enter into the Section 
106 agreement and to finalise and approve the wording of the conditions. 

1 Proposed Development

1.1 The proposed development is for a new mixed use residential community that 
would extend the north-eastern urban boundary of the Nottingham 
conurbation. The proposal comprises: 

• up to 1050 homes; 
• a local centre serving the local catchment, accommodating a 

convenience store (400m2), health centre (346m2) and 3 small retail 
units (150m2 each), plus car parking; 

• a single-form primary school providing 210 child places from Reception 
to Year 6; 

• areas of public open space, to include pocket parks, an urban square 
with play space and a linear green park totalling approximately 6ha; 

• a Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDS) network based on a 
series of swales, lagoons, permeable paving and landscaping; and 

• associated infrastructure, including roads. 

1.2 The overall vision for the development is the creation of a sustainable new 
community that integrates seamlessly with its setting adjacent to the Gedling 
Country Park. 

1.3 The development is proposed to be divided into two phases, linked to the full 
(Phase 1) and outline (Phase 2) elements of the hybrid planning application.  
Phase 1 is further split into Phase 1a and Phase 1b for delivery for the 

Page 26



reasons outlined below.

1.4 Full planning permission is sought for Phase 1 of the scheme, to comprise the 
erection of 506 dwellings (2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom houses and flats), vehicular 
access from Arnold Lane, internal roads and all associated infrastructure, 
including some public open space. 

1.5 This first phase covers the south-eastern section of the site and is anticipated 
to commence in 2016. The number of residential properties that can be 
constructed initially is linked to the delivery of the Gedling Access Road 
(GAR). Only 315 homes can be built prior to the road’s completion, currently 
expected by December 2019, due to the level of additional traffic that can be 
accommodated on the existing highway network. 

1.6 Outline planning permission is sought for Phase 2, comprising a maximum of 
544 dwellings (made up of an indicative mix of 2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom houses 
and flats), a local centre, a primary school and public open space. All matters 
are reserved except for indicative access points between Phase 1 and all 
subsequent phases, and future accesses from GAR. Phase 2 covers the 
northern and eastern most areas of the site, and the separate parcel of land 
located off Lambley Lane. 

1.7 The overall delivery rate for the site is expected to be 80 dwellings per annum 
on average, starting with 60 homes per annum and increasing to 100 homes 
per annum over the lifetime of the development. Only 100-200 homes are 
anticipated to be delivered prior to the completion of construction of the GAR. 
The entire site is expected to be built out over a 15 year period with build out 
rates averaging between 60-80 dwellings per year. 

1.8 The agent has submitted the following documents to support the planning 
application: 

• Planning Statement; 
• Design and Access Statement;
• State of Community Involvement; 
• Environmental Statement (including revised Chapter 6: Ecology and 

Chapter 10: Air Quality and revised appendices 6.10 (winter bird 
survey) and 6.11 (ecology mitigation proposals), to reflect discussions 
with the Council and other consultees); 

• Air Quality Assessment;
• Noise Report;
• Transport Assessment and Travel Plan;
• Tree and Landscape Report; 
• Landscaping Strategy; and 

Page 27



• EIA Screening Request (3rd July 2015) and Gedling Screening 
Opinion (25th August 2015).

2 Site Description

Location, size and current use

2.1 The application site is located at an edge-of-urban location on the Nottingham 
conurbation’s north-eastern periphery. It is immediately adjacent to the 
suburban residential neighbourhood and village of Gedling which is located to 
the south, and open countryside to the north. The settlements of Carlton and 
Colwick are located to the south of the site, Mapperley to the west and the 
villages of Burton Joyce and Lambley to its north-east and north respectively. 
At a wider scale, the site is located approximately 6 km north-east of 
Nottingham City Centre. Local shopping and administrative centres are 
located within the nearby suburbs of Arnold and Carlton. 

2.2 The application site comprises an area of 33.12 ha in total, but is divided into 
two sections of land, of which 32.09 ha is the main site and 1.03 ha is a small 
separate section of land off Lambley Lane. The full planning application 
element relating to Phase 1 of the development covers 14.36 ha of land and 
the outline planning application element relating to all subsequent phases of 
the development covers 18.76 ha. 

2.3 The main site is contained entirely within the Gedling Ward. The site is 
immediately bounded by: 

• Arnold Lane to the south-west (lined with residential properties and 
the southern section of Mapperley Golf Course); 

• Lambley Lane recreation ground to the south-east; 
• Gedling Country Park to the north-east, supporting grasslands, 

woodland, lagoons and a solar farm; and
• Chase Farm to the north-west. 

2.4 The separate part of the site comprising 1.03ha is located to the east of the 
main site along Lambley Lane. A line of residential properties is located to its 
south-east and Lambley Lane recreation ground to its west. 

2.5 Land running along the northern boundary of the site received planning 
permission in 2014 for the construction of the GAR. Vegetation clearance and 
initial ground works for this scheme have commenced at the north western 
end which lies adjacent to the north-west end of the site.

2.6 The site itself appears rural in character sitting within a bowl below the 

Page 28



Gedling County Park. It is however actually brownfield land as the former 
location of Gedling Colliery, a working coal pit that originally opened in 1902. 
The operation continued through most of the 20th century until the pit’s final 
closure in 1991. There are remnants of hard standing on site. There is an 
existing electricity sub-station located on the north-west side of the former 
colliery access road that falls outside of the application site boundary but will 
be encompassed by the new development. A single residential property on 
the east side of Arnold Lane, to the north of the former colliery entrance, is in 
separate ownership and is also excluded from the application site. 

2.7 The north-western and central parts of the site comprise fields of semi-
improved grassland which is currently being used for agricultural purposes 
and grazing. The north-eastern part of the site supports a densely vegetated 
area of semi-mature broadleaved woodland along a former railway line, which 
opens up into a mosaic of species-rich grassland with scattered areas of 
dense scrub and woodland. The southern section of the site coincides with 
the location of the former colliery spoil area, but which now supports species-
rich grassland and scrub, known as open mosaic habitat (OMH). 

2.8 The Lambley Lane site referred to in paragraph 2.4 above comprises a gently 
sloping agricultural field, bounded by a mature tree belt to the south-west with 
mixed hedging to opposing boundaries. The field is currently used for grazing 
by horses and comprises part of Glebe Farm. A small substation exists on the 
boundary with Lambley Lane. The north-eastern corner of the site forms the 
boundary with a link element to the GAR.

Site context: 

2.9 The topography of the site is undulating with levels varying from around 50m 
to 88m. Broadly the site slopes downward from the north-west to south-east. 
The site sits within a bowl surrounded by higher ground, with much steeper 
rolling topography to the north and east in particular, with the Gedling County 
Park forming a distinctive landscape feature. To the south, beyond the 
residential areas, the land falls away towards the River Trent floodplain. 

2.10 The site is considered to be of low risk of flooding, being located entirely 
within Flood Risk Zone 1, assessed as having a less than 1 in 1,000 (<0.1%) 
annual probability of flooding in any year. 

2.11 There are no statutory sites of nature conservation interest within the site or 
surrounding area. There is a non-statutory ‘site of local nature conservation 
interest’, the Gedling Colliery and Dismantled Railway Local Wildlife Site 
(LWS) located at the north-eastern extent of the application site, close to the 
GAR. This is a resource of local importance. 

Page 29



2.12 There are no records of European Protected Species on the site (for the 
purposes of the Habitats Directive). Some protected species have been 
identified in the wider area, and there are three notable bird species confirmed 
to be breeding on-site. These are the Goldcrest, Common whitethroat and 
Dunnock.

2.13 There are no Public Rights of Way (PRoW) covering the site. 

2.14 There are no designated heritage assets on site. There are three Grade II and 
one Grade I Listed Buildings to the south of the site along Arnold Lane.

2.15 The local built environment to the south and west of the site is predominantly 
characterised by a mixture of Victorian and early to mid-century housing 
development, usually in red-brick, and often differing in style from street to 
street. A relatively large new build residential development is also located 
north-west of the proposed site off Mapperley Plains Road, which has 
extended the urban boundary out to Spring Lane. 

2.16 Access to the main site is currently gained via the former colliery access road, 
towards the south-east corner of the site, which links to the A6211 Arnold 
Lane. Arnold Lane is a busy radial route connecting the A612 and the A60 
towards Mansfield. Access to the smaller area of land off Lambley Lane will 
be accessed via a slip road from the GAR to the north which itself will link 
directly onto Lambley Lane.

3 Site Background / Relevant Planning History

Site Background

3.1 The Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (adopted July 2005) provided 
a housing strategy for the area which identified the former Gedling Colliery 
site as an allocated housing site for future development under Policy H3. 
Policy H3 stated that planning permission will be granted for the mixed 
development of land at, and adjoining, the former Gedling Colliery site, but 
that planning permission could not be granted until an access road was 
available to provide the necessary junction improvements and access to the 
site. As the GAR received planning permission in late 2014 the land at Chase 
Farm is now viable for development. It is intended that the two developments 
would be built out concurrently, with the phasing of this development linked to 
the completion of construction of the GAR by condition.

3.2 The land is owned by the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA).

Page 30



3.3 The HCA appointed the applicant, Keepmoat Homes Ltd, to develop the site. 

3.4 The scheme is being delivered in partnership with the Homes and 
Communities Agency (HCA), Gedling Borough Council and Nottinghamshire 
County Council. Implementation of the full scheme is reliant on the delivery of 
the GAR. 

3.5 Keepmoat’s appointment is contingent upon them providing significant funding 
contributions to the development of the GAR in advance of development 
value.

3.6 A Project Steering Group comprising members of the partner organisations 
oversaw the preparation of this planning application in the seven months 
preceding the submission of this application. The design team included:

• The Advisory Team for Large Applications (ATLAS)
• Design: East Midlands (Known as OPUN)
• Homes and Communities Agency
• Keepmoat Homes Limited
• Nottinghamshire County Council
• Gedling Borough Council

3.7 Prior to the submission of the scheme OPUN were instructed to work with the 
HCA and Gedling Borough Council in providing design support on the Gedling 
Colliery / Chase Farm site. 

3.8 Two workshops were held to develop and refine a vision for the development, 
which was agreed as:

‘A new community set beside a country park, with pedestrian and cycle routes 
seamlessly and safely connecting people-friendly streets to a rich and diverse 
network of open spaces. ‘Green fingers’ will draw the country park into the new 
development creating distinctive identity.’

The workshops also informed the development of the overall design and layout of 
the scheme.

Relevant Planning History

3.9 In August 2008, an application for the construction of a 3.8 kilometre single 
carriageway road, linking the A612 and B684 Mapperley Plains, was 
submitted by the East Midlands Development Agency (EMDA) under 
application no: 2008/0459.This application has been finally disposed of 
following the abolition of EMDA in March 2012. 

Page 31



3.10 In December, 2014, full planning permission was granted under application 
no: 2014/0915 for the GAR, the construction of which was proposed to be 
carried out in two phases. 

3.11 In February, 2015, planning permission was granted under application no: 
2015/0110 for a variation of condition 2 attached to planning permission no: 
2014/0915 to amend the details of the approved plans so as to also refer to 
additional drawings, showing limited vegetation clearance to allow gas main 
re-alignment and preparation for an interim roundabout, which would 
otherwise have constituted a commencement of development and require a 
wide range of pre-commencement conditions to be discharged at that stage. 

3.12 The Borough Council is currently concluding the processing of an application 
submitted under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, 
allocated reference number 2015/1033, which seeks approval to vary 
condition 1 attached to planning permission no: 2014/0915 to enable the GAR 
to take place as a single construction programme, instead of in two distinct, 
timed phases as original proposed. 

3.13 The two phases would remain but there would be no restriction as to the order 
the phases are commenced. The deadline for completion of both phases 
would be 31st December 2019 and the deadline for completion of Phase 1 
would be removed. 

3.14 A decision notice will be issued following the completion of a s106 planning 
obligation, in the form of an updated Unilateral Undertaking given by the HCA. 

3.15 The construction of the GAR would follow a southern route from a new 
junction with the B684 created at Mapperley Plains, running parallel with the 
A6211 Arnold Lane, through the centre of the former Gedling Colliery site, to 
the east of which is Gedling Country Park. From the former colliery site, the 
GAR would cross a number of arable and pastoral fields, Glebe Farm and a 
section of the walled garden at Gedling House, which is a Grade II Listed 
Building, and a small section of the Carlton Academy grounds. The route 
would terminate at a new junction created with the A612 Burton Road, Burton 
Joyce. The proposed route of the GAR generally follows the route indicated 
on the Gedling Borough Council Replacement Local Plan Proposals Map. 

The GAR is a 3.8km road which unlocks the Gedling Colliery / Chase Farm 
site. The principle objectives of the GAR are twofold: 

1. to facilitate the redevelopment of the Gedling Colliery / Chase Farm site 
and accommodate additional traffic generated; and 

2. to provide a ‘bypass’ link around Gedling, linking the area with the wider 

Page 32



strategic road network to help ease traffic congestion on local roads.

3.16 Nottinghamshire County Council will be undertaking the land acquisition, 
design and construction of the GAR and have overall responsibility for its 
delivery, working in partnership with the HCA, Gedling Borough Council and 
the applicant. A Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) may be necessary to 
secure land required by the road; this is being managed by Nottinghamshire 
County Council and implemented as Local Highway Authority. In 2013, a 
Transport Modelling Appraisal established the basis for a phased programme 
of development. This allows the development of a maximum of 315 dwellings 
on the Gedling Colliery / Chase Farm site prior to completion and opening of 
the GAR.

4 Consultations

4.1 Application Publicity and Procedures

4.2 The application was publicised for representation on 20/01/2016 in 
accordance with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. Eight site 
notices advertising the application were displayed at Arnold Lane, Shelford 
Road, Lambley Lane, Jessops Lane, Spring Lane, Gedling Country Park, 
Mapperley Plains, and Clementine Drive to indicate the development. The 
required press notices have also been advertised in the Nottingham Post. 

4.3 During the determination period, additional information was requested to 
support the Environmental Statement in relation to air quality and wintering 
birds. As per Regulation 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011, this information constituted “further 
information” and as such a further 21 day period of consultation was 
instigated. The required additional press notice in the Nottingham Post and 
site notices (as above) were advertised commencing 08/04/2016, and further 
information sent to the statutory consultees on the same day.

4.4 Neighbour Consultation and General Publicity Responses

4.5 The comments below were made in respect of the application. Seventeen 
representations were received of which 9 were objections, 4 neutral 
comments and 1 in support. Comments can be outlined as follows:

4.6 Traffic

 Effect of the development on the existing road network, despite the 
construction of the GAR. Specifically, there is concern that: 

Page 33



• the new connecting road leading into the development through to 
the GAR will become a ‘cut through’, leading traffic onto the 
residential roads in Gedling; 

• Arnold Lane will suffer from further and severe traffic congestion, 
becoming increasingly dangerous and noisy as a result; and

• traffic generated from the development will route through residential 
roads in Gedling Village, south of Arnold Lane. Specific concerns 
were also raised for traffic generated outside Stanhope Infant and 
Junior School on Shelford Road.

 Fear that either the number of properties built at Phase 1 prior to the 
completion of the GAR is too many for the existing local road network to 
cope with or that the GAR will be delayed and/ or cancelled due to 
financial constraints, causing gridlock on local roads. 

 Calls for Arnold Lane to be made more pedestrian and cycle friendly. 
 A requirement for an improved junction design at Lambley Lane and 

Arnold Lane to accommodate increase in traffic volumes. 
 Concerns over levels of construction traffic which will route through local 

residential roads. 

4.7 Sustainable Transport

 Consideration is required to improve bus services to the development. A 
dedicated bus service is needed rather than simply an extension of 
existing service routes. 

 More measures need to be proposed with the Travel Plan to encourage 
new residents to use public transport or cycles, including greater provision 
of cycle ways and a bike hub.  

4.8 Drainage/ Flood Risk

 Concern that the existing foul water drainage and surface water run off 
systems may require further improvements as the current sewerage 
system may not be able to cope with the volume of housing proposed. 
Specific concerns were raised in relation to the Ouse Dyke and foul water 
sewers on Jessops Lane. 

4.9 Design

 The design of the proposed blocks of flats is not in keeping with the 
Gedling context and they appear too industrial. 

4.10 Housing

 There is a need for social housing, not just affordable housing. 

Page 34



 It is acknowledged that there is a need for new housing within the area. 

4.11 Air Quality

 Traffic generated by the development will have a detrimental impact on 
local air quality. 

4.12 Nature/wildlife

 There will be a devastating impact on local wildlife due to the development 
– as many hedgerows and trees should be retained as possible. 

4.13 Lambley Lane

 Proposals for the Lambley Lane site are not clear. 

4.14 Land Use

 The proposals need to provide a holistic approach to the development of 
the wider area, specifically land to the north of the application site owned 
by Haworth Estates, which is allocated for employment uses through the 
adopted Replacement Local Plan 2005. The local centre proposed as part 
of the outline phase of the application should complement the proposed 
retail development to be provided by Haworth Estates and reflect its scale 
as a local/ neighbourhood centre. 

4.15 Other

 Concerns over impact on the Pepperpots site where the 3rd Woodthorpe 
Scout Group are based. 

4.16 Process

 The neighbourhood consultation target area was not comprehensive 
enough. 

5 Statutory and Technical Bodies Consultation Responses

5.1 Ecology / Wildlife

5.2 Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust 

5.3 Good Green Infrastructure Design was noted but concern was raised over the 
loss of hedgerows. The translocation of some of the Open Mosaic Habitat as 

Page 35



part of the GAR mitigation was noted and the importance of coordination for 
mitigation between the two schemes emphasised.   

5.4 Natural England

5.5 No objections. The development comprises approximately 33 ha of 
agricultural land, including a significant proportion of land classified as ‘best 
and most versatile’ (Grades 1, 2 and 3a land in the Agricultural Land 
Classification (ALC) system) but a proportion of this will remain undeveloped, 
planned as ‘soft uses’ as part of the Green Infrastructure (GI). 

5.6 In order to safeguard soil resources as part of the overall sustainability of the 
development, it is important that the soil is able to retain as many of its 
important functions and services (ecosystem services) as possible through 
careful soil management. Consequently, it is advised that if the development 
proceeds, the developer uses an appropriately experienced soil specialist to 
advise on and supervise soil handling, including identifying when soils are dry 
enough to be handled and how to make best use of the different soils on site. 

5.7 The principles of the scheme, which aim to create a high quality built 
environment based upon a strong GI framework, are supported. It is 
recommended that a Green Infrastructure Management Plan is prepared 
outlining the management objectives for the overall GI. 

5.8 The application provides opportunities to incorporate features into the design 
which are beneficial to wildlife, such as the incorporation of roosting 
opportunities for bats or the installation of bird nest boxes. Conditions to 
secure biodiversity enhancement measures are encouraged. 

 
5.9 (Arboricultural Officer) Nottinghamshire County Council 

5.10 The recent drawing (dated 15-04-2016) titled ‘Tree Protection Plan’ show that 
most if not all trees are to be removed. If any trees are retained, a tree 
protection plan is recommended to show root protection in accordance with 
BS5837:2012.

5.11 Although the site does show the loss of trees/hedges categorised as low to 
moderate category, the landscape strategy report satisfactorily mitigates the 
loss of these trees/hedges.

5.12 The type and number of trees planted as part of the scheme seems 
reasonable, however it is recommended that a tree planting specification 
should be provided in accordance with BS 8545:2014.

Page 36



5.13 (Ecology) Nottinghamshire County Council

5.14 Most of the site supports agricultural grassland of low ecological value. 
However, the northern part of the site covers part of the Gedling Colliery 
Local Wildlife Site which is of County-level importance. This site is also 
affected by the GAR. Land off Lambley Lane and an area of Open Mosaic 
Habitat in the south-eastern part of the site are also considered to be of 
County value. 

5.15 Concerns are raised over impacts to these habitats alongside the loss of 
regenerating (secondary) woodland and hedgerows considered to be of 
moderate to high ecological value. 

5.16 Mitigation detail was provided through the landscaping proposals, however 
these details do not accord with the mitigation proposals set out in the 
Environmental Statement (ES). There are concerns highlighted regarding the 
proposed planting mix in the ‘natural’ landscaping areas. The species mix will 
need to be reviewed, including the ‘semi-natural’ shrub mixes, depending on 
their location.

5.17 The Landscape Strategy Report shows substantial works to the retained 
woodland belt running east-west across the northern part of the site (part of 
Phase 2). Whilst some enhancement works to this area would be beneficial, it 
is thought that the current proposals go too far, and should be revisited. 

5.18 It is suggested that the following conditions should be secured in relation to 
the application: 
 the production of a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP); 
 mitigation set out in the Ecology chapter of the ES must be implemented; 
 the production of an update to the landscape plans for Phase 2 particularly 

in relation to species mix and woodland clearance; 
 updated surveys in advance of each phase of development; the production 

of a Landscape Management Plan (to include enhancements to retained 
habitat and appropriate management of created habitats); and 

 the control of vegetation clearance during bird nesting season. 

6 Cultural Heritage and Landscape

6.1 (Archaeology) Nottinghamshire County Council 

6.2 Proposals to undertake a geophysical investigation prior to the 
commencement of development were requested if the geology of the site is 
conducive to good results. Works to be undertaken include an archaeological 
field evaluation, designed to ensure that there is no archaeology present 

Page 37



which requires preservation, and to ensure an overall approach to 
archaeological mitigation which is appropriate to the archaeological potential 
of the site.

6.3 (Landscape) Nottinghamshire County Council 

6.4 Support for the Phase 1 development provided that all mitigation measures 
stated in the Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment are implemented, and 
reviewed in line with the comments below, in relation to the designs proposed 
in relation to the Soft Landscape Drawing Sheets 1 – 19:

 Drawing sheets 2 and 5 include the swale to the north of the housing / to 
south of the woodland to be retained – details should be submitted for 
approval for the treatment of the swale – grass seed mix, trees, etc.

 Drawing 16 is annotated to say that the lagoon to the south-east is subject to 
further detailed design. The current design is fairly uniform – varied depths 
should be included to provide different habitats and cross sections provided to 
illustrate this. It is recommended some tree planting to the lagoon edges to 
provide some structure.

 Drawing 16 states that some aquatic plants are to be translocated from 
Gedling Country Park lagoons. The two lagoons to the south east of the 
country park are covered in New Zealand Pygmyweed which is an invasive 
weed and there are also small areas within the lagoons to the centre and west 
of the country park. Translocation would not therefore be advisable from the 
lower lagoons and care should be taken if plants are taken from the other 
lagoons to prevent spreading of the invasive weed.

 Drawing 17 (Plant Schedule) – Hedge Mixes – Rosa arvenis should be 
substituted with Rosa canina which is local to the area. The percentage 
should be reduced to 5% and the percentage of Crataegus monogyna 
increased to 60%. 

 Drawing 17 (Plant Schedule) Native Shrub Mix – Sambucus nigra should be 
deleted as this is not a recommended species for the Mid-Nottinghamshire 
Farmlands character area. Nick Crouch (Ecology) should be consulted on the 
Semi-Native Shrub Mixes to ensure that the proposed species are in line with 
the habitat mitigation requirements.

 Drawing 18 (Specification and Maintenance Schedule) – in addition to grass 
cutting and maintenance of aquatic planting, a maintenance schedule for the 
SuDs features should also be included. Guidance is given in the CIRIA SuDs 
Manual 2015 (e.g. Table 23.1 – operation and maintenance requirements for 
ponds and wetlands). 

6.5 The Landscape Team state that they are unable to support the application in 
its current form. They have therefore made the following recommendations: 

Page 38



i. To carry out management of the tree belt and provide the pedestrian cycle 
route along the disused railway line to provide links to the Gedling Country 
Park as part of Phase 1 works so that this facility is available to people who 
move into the Phase 1 housing and existing residents to the south.

Currently there would be no pedestrian/cyclist access to the Gedling Country 
Park until the completion of Phase 2. Whilst this depends upon completion of 
the GAR, we suggest that at least a temporary route is created to allow 
access. Details should also be provided for the access into the Gedling 
Country Park – the locations shown on the drawings for access to the country 
park do not currently have surfaced paths.  

ii. To carry out advanced planting of gaps and management of the hedgerows 
on Arnold Lane and Lambley Lane. The ecological report also recommended 
translocation of existing hedgerows where possible – this should be 
considered along the Lambley Lane boundary and would need to be carried 
out as advanced works. 

iii. To carry out more substantial screen planting to the northern boundary to 
reduce the visual impact of the development from the country park and 
mitigate the noise/visual impact of the GAR from the new residential 
properties. The layout / density of housing shown on the revised masterplan 
remains unchanged for Phase 2 which does not allow sufficient space for any 
substantial planting. A swale is also shown along the northern boundary – 
cross sections should be provided to illustrate the proposed Phase 2 housing 
in relation to the proposed screen planting / swale and the GAR/Gedling 
Country Park to the north. 

7 Hydrology, Geology, Hydrogeology and Land Contamination

7.1 Environment Agency

7.2 No objections to the proposal and satisfied that risks to controlled waters are 
minimal, subject to conditions relating to contamination, surface water and 
ground water pollution. 

7.3 Severn Trent

7.4 No objection to the proposal subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to 
the submission and approval of drainage plans for the disposal of surface 
water and foul sewage prior to the commencement of development. 

7.5 Nottinghamshire County Council (Lead Local Flood Authority)

Page 39



7.6 No objections raised; the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy is 
deemed acceptable. 

7.7 It is highlighted that the site lies within a known problematic flood area 
(although not the site itself) and therefore suggests that the proposed 
development manages to intercept all run-off and route this through the 
sustainable urban drainage system proposed. 

7.8 However, concerns were raised over the lack of consideration of areas 
outside the site boundary or additional phases of development in calculating 
flood risk, which might create a flood risk to Phase 1 of the scheme. 

7.9 Emergency Planning, Health and Safety

7.10 Concerns raised regarding potential ‘bottle necks’ in the sewage system with 
surcharging risk to properties in the lower lying land of the development; 
potential flood risk increase to the Ouse Dyke and details of the ownership of 
the sustainable urban drainage system. Additionally, a query was raised in 
relation to the completion of a hydraulic modelling study by Severn Trent 
Water, and whether they were satisfied that foul water and sewage from the 
development can be absorbed by the current system. 

7.11 Minerals (Nottinghamshire County Council)

7.12 The site lies within the economic reserve of brick clay for Dorket Head Brick 
Works (Arnold), a Mineral Safeguarding and Consultation Area for brick clay 
within the Minerals Local Plan (Submission Draft, consultation February 2016) 
(Policy DM13). The County Council, as the mineral planning authority, are 
content that prior extraction is not feasible in this instance. 

7.13 Waste (Nottinghamshire County Council)

7.14 No objection. There are no existing waste management facilities in close 
proximity of the proposed development to raise any issues in terms of 
safeguarding existing waste management  facilities (as per Policy WCS10 of 
the Waste Core Strategy). Best practice of waste management for the 
development is encouraged to maximise the use of recycled materials and 
assist the collection, separation, sorting, recycling and recovery of waste 
arising from the development.

7.15 Land Reclamation (Nottinghamshire County Council)

7.16 No objection. It is noted that the previous use of the site does not give 
significant risk from contamination, but the adjacent land uses, colliery spoil 

Page 40



tips and landfill may give rise to contamination risks. A geo-environmental site 
investigation for ground conditions is recommended in which the conceptual 
site model is refined. A Phase 2 risk assessment should be undertaken 
relating to soil and on-site and off-site associated groundwater and surface 
waters that may be affected, and ground gas and vapour. A Method 
Statement should be developed detailing any remediation requirements.

7.17 Land Contamination (Scientific Officer)

7.18 No objection and general agreement with the Environmental Statement’s 
conclusions, subject to further assessment to refine the gas Conceptual Site 
Model with regard to potential risks both on and off site. 

7.19 Requests are also made for consideration to be given to soil testing results 
and how representative they may be of the final soil profile upon which 
properties are to be constructed; and for validation that garden areas are free 
of contamination up to a depth of 1 metre. Appropriate conditions are 
therefore recommended in relation to an assessment of the nature and extent 
of any potential contamination, and submission of a detailed remediation 
scheme, including a timetable of works and site management procedures. 

8 Air Quality, Noise and Dust

8.1 Noise (Public Protection)

8.2 No objection, but concerns raised over possibility of noise from external 
sources which could be intrusive to some residential properties within the 
development, namely those adjacent to Arnold Lane, Lambley Lane and the 
existing electricity sub-station. Condition recommended relating to the 
implementation of a glazing and ventilation strategy to support noise 
mitigation for the affected properties. 

8.3 Air Quality (Scientific Officer) 

8.4 Concerns are raised that the air quality assessment does not address the 
impact that the development would have on the wider community, and in 
particular to commuter routes into Nottingham. 

8.5 Concerns were also raised that the mitigation proposed is not in keeping with 
the scale of development, and requests mitigation which is more in keeping 
with the scale of development. In addition, conditions are requested in relation 
to the provision of electronic vehicle charging points, low NOx boilers for 
residential and commercial buildings and the provision of ‘fibre to home’ 
broadband.

Page 41



8.6 Air Quality (Dust)

8.7 No objection, but condition requested for a Dust Management Plan to ensure 
that the potential for short term pollution from dust is considered and mitigated 
against. 

9 Telecommunications and Transportation

9.1 Network Rail

9.2 No objection in principle to the development but require conditions in relation 
to drainage, boundary fencing, method statements and landscaping to ensure 
the safety, operational needs and integrity of the railway; and an informative 
relating to fail safe use of crane and plant, encroachment, access to the 
railway and excavations/earthworks. 

9.3 In addition, Network Rail request a contribution towards the improvement of 
Carlton, Netherfield and Burton Joyce stations, located approximately 2 miles 
(3.2km) from the development.

9.4 Highway Authority (Nottinghamshire County Council)

9.5 The limit of 315 units that can be built and occupied in advance of the GAR is 
highlighted, as is the inter-dependency between the development and the 
GAR given the reliance of £15 million of funding from the developer, 
Keepmoat Homes Limited, (excluding any financial contributions which would 
be made through the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) in order to meet the 
intended delivery timescale for the GAR of 2017/18. 

9.6 With regard to traffic, it was highlighted that the proposed road that joins 
Arnold Lane and the eastern GAR roundabout adjacent the proposed school 
could become a ‘rat run’ between the GAR and Shelford Road. Traffic calming 
measures and controls should therefore be considered fronting the school 
site. 

9.7 New bus stop infrastructure within the site is requested, with public transport 
provision suggested through an extension of existing bus services 44 or L74 
or a new service. Discussions with the bus operator and Transport & Travel 
Services are encouraged to progress this. Contributions have also been 
requested to fund public transport improvements in the site, which will be 
agreed through a s106 obligation. If public transport is not implemented during 
the build out phases it is very difficult to get residents to adjust their travel 

Page 42



patterns, making reaching the modal shift target set out in the Local Transport 
Plan unachievable. 

9.8 It is considered that allocated car parking for this development is reasonable 
as in the majority of cases the off-street parking areas are close to the 
dwellings that they serve to make sure that they are fully used. This will 
minimise the possibility of on-street parking problems. There are some 
separate car parking areas/garages which are remote from the properties that 
they serve, which may result in on-street parking and maintenance problems 
which discourage their use and affects the overall quality and appearance of 
the development. 

9.9 As stated there is unallocated parking shown around the Urban Square and in 
the ‘feature areas’ throughout the proposed residential development which are 
located separately to allow adequate highway ‘running’ widths and therefore 
should not interfere with the safe passage of vehicles and pedestrians. 

9.10 In line with the 6C’s Design Guide the Highway Authority would like to see 
well designed parking layouts both on and off street that minimise the 
likelihood of on-street parking. Tracking has been undertaken with a suitable 
refuse/recycling wagon on the roads that are to be put forward for adoption, 
albeit without on-street parking being present. In principle, it is considered that 
roads/streets that are 5.5 metres and above in width are suitable to 
accommodate some on-street car parking. Where there are the narrower cul-
de-sac arrangements on-street parking can become an issue whereby 
vehicles may be parked partly on footway/landscaped margins causing 
maintenance issues and obstructions to other vehicles and pedestrians.

9.11 Conditions required relating to:
 the phasing of delivery of the scheme; 
 the implementation of the travel plan;
 details of internal traffic calming; 
 provision of bus infrastructure; 
 agreement of a Construction Method Statement; and
 details of the Phase 2 road layout.

9.12 Countryside Access (Rights of Way Officer) – (Nottinghamshire County 
Council)

Confirmed no Public Rights of Way are affected by the development. 

10 Housing

Page 43



10.1 Housing

10.2 The Development Brief for the Gedling Colliery and Chase Farm site (June 
2008), seeks to achieve 20% affordable housing on this site. This equates to 
101 affordable dwellings for Phase 1 (assuming a Phase 1 development of 
506 dwellings) and a total of 210 affordable dwellings for the total scheme 
(assuming 1,050 dwellings). 

10.3 Further correspondence was undertaken with the Housing Officer following 
the assessment from the District Valuer (DV) on the viability of providing 10% 
affordable housing, rather than 20% as originally requested. This confirmed 
that due to the circumstances of the scheme and following independent 
assessment of viability, the Housing Officer is willing to accept a lower 
requirement of 10% affordable housing.   

10.4 The mix of tenure for the affordable units and phasing of delivery is subject to 
ongoing discussions with the applicant and will be agreed through the 
resultant S106 agreement. 

11 Socio-economic and Health

11.1 Community Infrastructure (CIL Officer)

11.2 There is a need for the Developer to pay a contribution towards the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) for each detailed phase of development.  
The site is located in CIL Zone 2   which levies a charge of £45 per sq m of 
residential development.  Based on current floor areas, the first phase of 
development (506 dwellings) would generate a CIL payment of up to 
£1,936,602.

11.3 National Health Service (Nottingham North & East Clinical Commissioning 
Group)

11.4 The majority of local practices are operating at full capacity and therefore 
additional patients caused by the development will require additional new 
space to accommodate their health needs. 

11.5 Calculations for financial contributions were based on an average household 
size of 2.5 per dwelling and assuming that 100% of the new population would 
come into the area for primary care health provision. This results in an 
increased patient population of approximately 2,625 people, equating to a 
financial contribution of £525,000. 

11.6 Public Health (Nottinghamshire County Council)

Page 44



11.7 No objection. Concerns were raised relating to access to community facilities 
and services. Lack of these can lead to people being isolated and suffering 
from mental health conditions. Given that limiting long term illness is 
statistically worse in the area compared to the national average, the 
development needs to ensure that it is age friendly and provides good access 
to health and social care facilities.

11.8 Education Authority (Nottinghamshire County Council) 

11.9 The proposed development is within the primary catchment area of Lambley 
Primary School and the secondary catchment area of Carlton Academy. The 
wider area includes Mapperley Plains Primary, Stanhope Primary and 
Westdale Infant and Junior Schools. 

11.10 The proposed development of 1,050 dwellings would yield an additional 221 
primary and 168 secondary places. The County Council note that based on 
current projections, primary and secondary schools are at capacity and 
cannot accommodate the additional 221 primary places and 168 secondary 
places arising from the proposed development. 

11.11 As a one-form entry primary school (Published Admission Number (PAN) of 
30) can accommodate 210 children, a proposed housing development of this 
size requires its own primary school to sustain the development, since local 
schools would not be able to accommodate this additional number of pupils. 
Furthermore, the anticipated arrival of 221 pupils would not be accommodated 
by the provision of a single one-form entry school, particularly when 
considering that the 221 pupils would not be evenly distributed across all 7 
primary cohorts. Therefore, in the case of this proposed development, 
Nottinghamshire County Council requests a one-form entry primary school on 
a site large enough to allow potential expansion. 

11.12 The catchment secondary school, Carlton Academy, has almost met or 
exceeded its primary to secondary transfer PAN for the last four years. 
Therefore there is no capacity to accommodate the expected average of 34 
secondary pupils per age group, without additional accommodation being 
created. 

11.13 Secondary contributions of £2,899,680 (168 x £17,260) are requested to 
mitigate the impact of the development on secondary education facilities. It is 
anticipated that funding for secondary education will be collected through the 
Borough Council’s Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule, as 
the list of infrastructure projects published pursuant to Regulation 123 of the 

Page 45



CIL Regulations includes secondary schools. Given the pressure on 
secondary school places, the County Council would wish to receive the 
secondary school funding as soon as possible.

11.14 Sport England

11.15 The site is not considered to form part of, or constitute a playing field as 
defined in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (Statutory Instrument 2015 No. 595). 
Therefore Sport England have provided a non-statutory consultation 
response. 

11.16 As the CIL Regulation 123 list does not refer to off-site sports facilities such 
contributions could be sought via a s.106 planning obligation.

11.17 Sport England support the use of the sport pitches on Lambley Lane as 
excellent local facilities for the new development if evidence suggests that this 
is the most sustainable and the right approach for the area, rather than 
providing new facilities. However, it must be clear that the existing facilities in 
terms of quantity and quality of provision, including infrastructure, are 
sufficient to accommodate the additional demand generated by the 
development proposed. The population of the proposed development is 
estimated to be around 2520 people (based on the proposed housing 
numbers x 2.4 occupiers for each dwelling). 

11.18 Sport England are concerned that evidence is not available to understand if 
the additional demands on sports facilities are an issue or not, and therefore 
raise a non-statutory holding objection based on insufficient information.

11.19 Parks and Street Care 

11.20 Based on the requirements of the Supplementary Planning Guidance for open 
space provision, 40% of the overall minimum 10% open space provision 
should be an informal play area and a Neighbourhood Equipped Area for Play 
(NEAP). 

11.21 Economic Development

11.22 Economic Development support the Employment and Skills Plan produced by 
the applicant to support the application, which satisfies the employment and 
skills requirements to be delivered during the development period. The Plan 
was developed collaboratively by the developer and Gedling Borough Council.  

12 Local Authorities and Parish Councils

Page 46



12.1 Burton Joyce Parish Council

 After completion it is hoped that there will be continued traffic monitoring 
along Burton Road.

12.2 Lambley Parish Council

 No comments received. 

12.3 Nottingham City Council

 The City Council welcomes this planning application. When implemented it 
will represent a significant contribution to meeting housing requirements of 
the Greater Nottingham area as a whole, as well as the requirements for 
Gedling Borough, as identified in Policy 2 of the GBACS. The proposal is 
located on the edge of the built up area of Greater Nottingham, and 
includes a large element of land classified as brownfield. The proposal 
therefore furthers the Core Strategy’s approach to development in terms of 
the strategy of urban concentration with regeneration.  

13 Assessment of Planning Considerations

13.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended) requires that: ‘if regard is to be had to the development plan for the 
purpose of any determination to be made under the planning Acts the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise’.

13.2 The most relevant national planning policy guidance in the determination of 
this application are contained within the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) (March 2012) and additional information provided in the National 
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG).

13.3 Development Plan Policies 

13.4 Gedling Borough Council adopted the Gedling Borough Aligned Core Strategy 
(GBACS) on 10th September 2014 and this now forms part of the 
Development Plan along with certain saved policies contained within the 
Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (adopted 2005) (GBRLP) referred 
to in Appendix E of the GBACS.

13.5 It is considered that the following policies contained in the GBACS are 

Page 47



relevant to this application:

 GBACS Policy 1 (Climate Change)
 GBACS Policy 2 (The Spatial Strategy);
 GBACS Policy 6 (Role of Town and Local Centres);
 GBACS Policy 8 (Housing Size, Mix and Choice);
 GBACS Policy 10 (Design and Enhancing Local Identity); 
 GBACS Policy 15 (Transport Infrastructure Priorities);
 GBACS Policy 16 (Green Infrastructure, Parks & Open Space); and
 GBACS Policy 19 (Developer Contributions).

13.6 In accordance with paragraphs 214 – 215 of the NPPF due weight should be 
given to the policies of the GBRLP in accordance to their degree of 
consistency with the framework. Consideration will also need to be given to 
whether policies are out of date in line with paragraph 14 of the NPPF.

13.7 It is considered that the following policies from the RLP are relevant to this 
application: 
 GBRLP Policy H2 (Distribution of Residential Development);
 GBRLP Policy H8 (Residential Density); 
 GBRLP Policy E1 (e) (Allocation of Employment Land)
 GBRLP Policy R3 (Provision of Open Space with New Residential 

Development);
 GBRLP Policy ENV1 (Development Criteria);
 GBRLP Policy ENV36 (Local Nature Conservation Designations); and
 GBRLP Policy ENV37 (Mature Landscape Areas).

13.8 Additionally, the following supplementary planning documents are considered 
to be of relevance to this application: 
 Gedling Borough Affordable Housing SPD adopted 2009; and
 Gedling Borough Parking Provision SPD adopted 2012. 

13.9 At a county level, the Nottinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2005 is 
relevant. The Plan guides the development of minerals and waste facilities in 
the non-unitary areas of the County.

13.10 National Planning Policy Framework

13.11 The following paragraphs of the NPPF are of relevance to the principle of this 
application:

 NPPF Paragraphs 6 to 16 (presumption in favour of sustainable 
development);

 NPPF Paragraphs 18 to 22 (building a strong, competitive economy);

Page 48



 NPPF Paragraphs 29 to 41 (promoting sustainable transport);
 NPPF Paragraphs 47 to 55 (delivering a wide choice of high quality 

homes);
 NPPF Paragraphs 56 to 68 (requiring good design); 
 NPPF Paragraphs 69 to 78 (promoting healthy communities);
 NPPF paragraphs 93 – 108 (meeting the challenge of climate change, 

flooding and coastal change); and
 NPPF Paragraphs 109 – 125 (Conserving and enhancing the natural 

environment)

13.12 One of the core principles of the NPPF is to support and deliver economic 
growth to ensure that the housing, business and other development needs of 
an area are met. The NPPF looks to boost significantly the supply of housing. 
The principles and policies contained in the NPPF also recognise the value of 
and the need to protect and enhance the natural, built and historic 
environment, biodiversity and also include the need to adapt to climate 
change.

13.13 A key aspect of the NPPF is that it includes a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development. This means that, for decision-taking, local planning 
authorities should approve development proposals that accord with the 
development plan without delay or where a development plan is absent, silent 
or out of date, grant permission unless any adverse impacts of the proposal 
outweigh the benefits, or specific policies in the NPPF indicate that 
development should be restricted. 

13.14 Paragraph 7 identifies the three dimensions to sustainable development: 
economic, social and environmental. This theme is continued into paragraph 9 
which states that pursuing sustainable development involves seeking positive 
improvements in the quality of the built, natural and historic environment, as 
well as in people’s quality of life.

13.15 The NPPF also discusses the weight that can be given in planning 
determinations to policies emerging as the local authority’s development plan 
is being brought forward. Paragraph 14 identifies the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden thread running 
through both plan-making and decision-taking. The weight given to these 
policies will be very dependent on; their stage of preparation, the extent to 
which there are unresolved objections and the degree of consistency with the 
NPPF. 

13.16 Paragraph 17 outlines the core principles of planning. In specific reference to 
this planning application these are noted as:
 identification and then meeting the housing, business and other 

Page 49



development needs of an area, and responding positively to wider 
opportunities for growth;

 encouraging the effective use of land by reusing land that has been 
previously developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not of high 
environmental value; and

 promoting mixed use developments, and encouraging multiple benefits 
from the use of land in urban and rural areas, recognising that some 
open land can perform many functions (such as for wildlife, recreation, 
flood risk mitigation, carbon storage, or food production).

13.17 Paragraphs 18 to 22 of the NPPF outline the Government’s commitment to 
securing economic growth in order to create jobs and prosperity, which 
benefits local communities and the national economy. Paragraph 21 of the 
NPPF puts furthers emphasis on securing a strong and competitive economy 
by stipulating that ‘planning policies should recognise and seek to address the 
potential barriers to investment, including a poor environment or any lack of 
infrastructure, services or housing’.

13.18 Paragraphs 29 to 41 of the NPPF address the issue of sustainable transport. 
Planning decisions should ensure developments that generate significant 
amounts of movement are located where the need to travel will be minimised 
and the use of sustainable transport modes can be maximized (para 30; a key 
tool to facilitate this will be the use of a Travel Plan (paragraphs 34 and 36)). 

13.19 Paragraph 32 requires all major planning applications to be supported by an 
appropriate Transport Assessment (TA) and concludes that new development 
proposals should only be refused on transport grounds where the residual 
cumulative impacts would be severe.

13.20 There is encouragement throughout the NPPF for the delivery of a choice of 
high quality homes, widening the opportunities for ownership and creating 
sustainable, inclusive and mixed communities. In order to boost significantly 
the supply of housing, local planning authorities should identify a supply of 
specific and developable sites in locations for growth for both the short to 
medium term. Authorities are also implored to plan for a mix of housing based 
on current and future demographic trends and in doing so, they should identify 
the size, type and ensure a range of housing required in a particular location, 
reflecting local demand (paragraphs 47-55). 

13.21 The NPPF recognises the need for local authorities to boost significantly the 
supply of housing in order to deliver a wide choice of high quality homes, 
widen opportunities for home ownership and create sustainable, inclusive and 
mixed communities. Local authorities should plan for a mix of housing based 
on the needs of different groups in the community (paragraph 50).

Page 50



13.22 The NPPF policies exhibit the Government’s commitment to achieving high 
quality design of the built environment; good design is a key aspect of 
sustainable development and is indivisible from good planning (paragraph 
56).  Furthermore paragraph 57 stresses it is important to plan positively for 
the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all development, 
including individual buildings, public and private spaces and wider 
development schemes.

13.23 The NPPF also seeks to promote healthy communities. Paragraphs 69-78 of 
the NPPF sets out ways in which the planning system can play an important 
role in facilitating social interaction and create healthy inclusive environments.  
Planning policies should in turn aim to achieve places which promote:
 Safe and accessible environments
 High quality public spaces
 Recreational space/sports facilities
 Community facilities
 Public rights of way

13.24 The Government attaches great importance to ensuring that a sufficient 
choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new 
communities. Accordingly, paragraph 72 of the NPPF states that ‘local 
Planning Authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative 
approach to meeting this requirement, and to development that will widen 
choice in education’, giving great weight to the need to create and expand or 
alter schools. 

13.25 Paragraph 95 states that Local Planning Authorities should support the move 
to a low carbon future by planning for new development in locations and ways 
which reduce greenhouse gas emissions; actively supporting energy 
efficiency improvement to existing buildings; and, when setting any local 
requirement for a building’s sustainability, do so in a way that is consistent 
with the Government’s zero carbon buildings policy and adopt nationally 
described standards. 

13.26 Paragraph 100 (and onwards) discusses the flood risk implications of 
development. The NPPF notes that inappropriate development in areas at risk 
of flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at 
highest risk, but where development is necessary, making it safe without 
increasing flood risk elsewhere.

13.27 The NPPF advises that the planning system should contribute to and enhance 
the natural and local environment, and aim to minimise pollution and other 
adverse effects on the local and natural environment. Paragraph 111 of the 

Page 51



NPPF sets out how planning policies and decisions should encourage the 
effective use of land by re-using land that has been previously developed, 
provided that it is not of high environmental value.

13.28 Assessment of Planning Considerations:

13.29 In my opinion the planning considerations in the determination of this 
application are: 

 Principle of development
 Housing supply and provision
 The impact on neighbouring amenity
 Open space and recreation
 Masterplan and design
 Phasing
 Environment
 Landscape and visual effects 
 Transport and connectivity 
 Air quality
 Noise
 Water resources, flood risk and drainage
 Land contamination
 Ecology
 Waste
 Socio-economic impacts
 Heritage and archaeology
 Minerals
 Viability 
 Other material considerations 

14 Principle of Development

14.1 The National Planning Policy Framework attaches great importance to 
sustainable development. It states: “Development that is sustainable should 
go ahead without delay – a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
that is the basis for every plan, and every decision” (NPPF - ministerial 
foreword).This is further confirmed in paragraph 14 which states that - “at the 
heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development 
which should be seen as a golden thread running through both plan-making 
and decision-taking.” One of the core principles of the NPPF is to support and 
deliver economic growth to ensure that the housing, business and other 
development needs of an area are met. 

14.2 The GBACS sets a housing target of 7,250 dwellings in Gedling Borough 

Page 52



between 2011 and 2028 and requires 4,045 homes to be located within and 
adjoining the Nottingham built up area.  In order to meet this target the 
GBACS adopts a strategy of urban concentration with regeneration.  This 
means the following hierarchy will be used to identify sites:

 Within or on the edge of the built up area of Nottingham.
 Adjacent to the sub regional centre of Hucknall.
 Key villages (Bestwood, Calverton and Ravenshead).
 Other villages.

14.3 The proposed development therefore accords with the highest priority site in 
the housing hierarchy. 

14.4 The adopted GBACS allocates strategic sites and the emerging Local 
Planning Document will be used to allocate non-strategic sites.  GBACS 
Policy 2 (The Spatial Strategy) identifies Gedling Colliery/Chase Farm as a 
strategic location for growth to accommodate at least 600 homes and subject 
to delivery of the GAR.  

14.5 GBACS Policy 4 makes provision for a significant amount of economic 
development on the former Gedling Colliery site and GBACS Policy 7 
(Regeneration) identifies the development site as a regeneration priority site 
and as an opportunity for the redevelopment and reuse of a brownfield site.  

14.6 The planning application does not include the employment land identified to 
the north of the proposed GAR and would not prejudice the employment land 
coming forward for its intended purpose.  The proposed uses are consistent 
with policies 2, 4 and 7 of the GBACS and do not raise any significant 
prematurity issues in connection with the forthcoming Local Planning 
Document.

14.7 Also of relevance to this application are saved policies from the Gedling 
Borough Replacement Local Plan (adopted 2005). GBRLP Policy H2 
identifies the application site as a mixed use allocation for 1120 dwellings. 
GBRLP Policy E1(c) allocates 6 ha of land at the former Gedling Colliery for 
employment generating uses excluding retail and other uses more 
appropriately located within town and local centres.  This identified 
employment land located to the north of the proposed GAR.  GBRLP Policy 
H3 (Land at the Former Gedling Colliery and Chase Farm) was not saved in 
2014 as the GBACS identifies it as a strategic location with its boundaries to 
be confirmed in the Local Planning Document.

14.8 The above policies establish the principle which supports the case for large-
scale, mixed use residential development on the site.

Page 53



15 Housing supply and provision

15.1 Housing Supply 

15.2 Paragraph 49 of the NPPF sets out that where local planning authorities 
cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites, relevant 
policies for the supply of housing should be considered out-of-date. Recent 
appeals (notably the Binfield decision ref 2179560) have indicated that this 
would include policies which restrict or direct residential development.  Where 
policies are out of date, applications for residential development should be 
considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. Paragraph 14 explains that the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development requires that, where the development plan is out of 
date, permission is granted unless:

 any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
as a whole; or

 specific policies in the NPPF indicate development should be restricted.

15.3 The NPPF provides guidance on the weight that can be given in planning 
determinations to policies emerging whilst the local planning authority’s 
development plan is being brought forward. The weight given to these policies 
will be very dependent on: their stage of preparation, the extent to which there 
are unresolved objections to the relevant policies and the degree of 
consistency with the NPPF. 

15.4 The Five Year Housing Land Supply Assessment (March 2015) identifies that 
there is a 4.31 year supply of deliverable housing sites within the Borough 
against the target of 5.25 years.  As such, relevant policies relating to the 
supply of housing in the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan are out of 
date, albeit in this case GBRLP H2 is supportive of mixed use development 
on this site. Notwithstanding, the principle of the proposal should be 
considered against the presumption in favour of sustainable development and 
the policies in the NPPF and the GBACS. The Gedling Colliery site forms an 
important part of the five year housing supply, and so accords with the NPPF 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. 

Mix of housing

15.5 The development will feature a mixture of 2, 3, 4 and a small number of 5 
bedroom homes as well as two bedroom apartments. The variety of housing 
types will create a mixed community providing units for family housing as well 

Page 54



as smaller units to accommodate couples or individuals. This is felt to be a 
good mix of homes which would serve the needs of the community. 

15.6 As per the Development Brief for the Gedling Colliery and Chase Farm site 
(June 2008), Paragraph 4.8 of Gedling’s Affordable Housing SPD (December 
2009), and Policy 8 of the GBACS (September 2014), 20% affordable housing 
is required on this site which falls within the Carlton sub-market area. This 
equates to 101 affordable dwellings for Phase 1 (assuming a Phase 1 
development of 506 dwellings) and a total of 210 affordable dwellings for the 
total scheme (assuming 1,050 dwellings). Whilst the specific mix of affordable 
units and phasing of delivery is subject to negotiation the starting point 
specified by Gedling Borough Council would be that 70% of this should be for 
either social rent or affordable rent (as defined in Annex 2 of the NPPF), with 
the remainder being intermediate housing – this would give 71 units for rent 
and 30 units for intermediate housing in Phase 1 (and a total of 147 units for 
rent and 63 units for intermediate housing for the entire scheme).

15.7 Gedling Borough Council instructed the District Valuers Services (DV) to 
independently assess the viability of the scheme. In light of the abnormal 
costs and specific circumstances attached to this scheme the DV concluded 
that the land value used by the developer was appropriate. Taking into 
account the required GAR contribution as part of the tender awarded by the 
HCA, other S106 obligations and the CIL charge, and a very modest 
developer’s profit, this means that the development breaks even with an on-
site 10% affordable housing provision. On this basis, it is therefore concluded 
that the offer of 10% affordable housing, plus s106 obligations totalling 
£5,097,500 is reasonable and appropriate for this site.

15.8 Policy requires that 20% of dwellings within a development are affordable, 
however the Housing Officer agreed that it is acceptable, given the 
circumstances, for a target of 10% of dwellings within the site are affordable, 
giving on 105 affordable units in total. Affordable housing policy requests as a 
starting point for negotiation approximately 70% of provision should be either 
social rent or affordable rent, and 30% intermediate housing. The precise 
proportion of affordable housing is to be determined in the negotiation on a 
S106 legal agreement.

15.9 For Phase 1 of the development, 50 affordable homes are proposed although 
the type of affordable housing is not yet known. Given the level of funding 
being provided by the applicant towards the GAR (approximately £15 million) 
in addition to the required CIL and s106 obligations, the target of 10% 
affordable dwellings is felt to be justified, and the position has been agreed by 
the Housing Officer. I note that the DV have independently assessed the 
viability report from the agent. The findings of the DV report concur with the 

Page 55



findings of the viability assessment submitted by the applicant. 

15.10 I consider that the overall housing mix is good, and it will serve the needs of 
the community. The proportion of affordable housing on site is lower than the 
policy requirement; however this is justified given the viability issues with the 
site. A mechanism to review affordable housing provision is being sought 
through the S106 agreement to allow for the possibility that viability may 
improve. 

Density

15.11 Local Replacement Plan Policy H8 sets out the Borough Council’s 
requirements for residential density requiring 30 dwellings per hectare in 
general and increasing to 40 or 50 dwellings per hectare in accessible 
locations such as local centres and public transport routes.  

15.12 The Application Planning Statement indicates that densities will range from 30 
dwellings/ha in less central locations rising to 40 – 50 dwellings per hectare 
dependent upon proximity to public transport which is consistent with Policy 
H8 and accords with the established suburban surroundings. 

16 The impact on neighbouring amenity

16.1 Residential amenity considerations relevant to this proposal include the 
impact from noise generated by the development as well as dust, lighting and 
overlooking. The main impact is likely to be from the construction phase and it 
is accepted that there is likely to be some impact on residential amenity during 
this phase. Criterion b. of Policy ENV1 of the GBRLP states that planning 
permission would be granted for development providing that it would not have 
a significant adverse effect on the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring 
properties or the locality in general. Criterion f) of Policy 10 of the GBACS 
relating to impact upon the amenity of nearby residents and occupiers is also 
relevant in considering this proposal.

16.2 The construction phase is likely to extend over a 15 year period, with build out 
rates averaging between 60-80 dwellings per year.  The nearest buildings that 
could be affected are those fronting Arnold Lane and Lambley Lane, or those 
that have already been built as part of the development. The impacts of the 
construction activities will be managed through a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) which will ensure that working hours, traffic 
management, control of pollution, waste management, noise, dust and 
vibration are all managed and controlled to acceptable standards. The CEMP 
and the requirements it needs to cover will be secured through a planning 
condition. This will protect both existing dwellings as well as new occupiers of 

Page 56



the dwellings within the site. 

16.3 The principal noise sources associated with the development post 
construction are anticipated to be related to the increase in road traffic, 
particularly on the proposed GAR. It is considered that the majority of the 
effects of noise on this bypass have already been addressed through specific 
measures which were outlined within the relevant ES submitted for the GAR 
development. 

16.4 Individual houses have been arranged within the site so as to minimise the 
opportunity for direct overlooking, particularly from upper floor windows. The 
internal room layouts have been arranged so as not to result in auditory 
conflict, for example by avoiding adjoining bathrooms and bedrooms in 
attached homes. The same principle has been applied between individual 
flats, both horizontally and vertically. In addition, the layout of the site as a 
whole has oriented properties to minimise the potential for overlooking and 
overshadowing. 

16.5 The Gedling Replacement Local Plan does not specify specific standards for 
outdoor amenity space for dwellings. Nevertheless, each house benefits from 
its own private garden. Apartments all feature at least one Juliet balcony and 
many have multiple full height windows allowing ample natural light. There are 
no single aspect apartments thereby providing good standards of cross 
ventilation.

16.6 Any amenity impacts from and affecting the development at Phase 2 can be 
controlled to a large extent through the reserved matters application, such 
matters being required to be in accordance with the principles and parameters 
described and illustrated in the submitted masterplan. 

16.7 I am satisfied that the proposed development would not result in any material 
overbearing impact on neighbouring residential amenity due to the scale of 
the properties and their relationship with neighbouring dwellings, as well as 
the measures proposed to be covered within the CEMP (to be conditioned). It 
is therefore considered that the indicative details deposed with the application 
accord with the NPPF, Policy ENV1 of the RLP and Policy 10 of the GBACS. 

17 Masterplan and Design

17.1 The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. 
Section 7 of the NPPF states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development and that it should contribute positively to making places better for 
people. Developments should function well and add to the overall quality of the area, 

Page 57



respond to local character and history, reflecting the identity of local surroundings 
and materials and be visually attractive as a result of good architectural and 
appropriate landscape.

17.2 National guidance in the form of Planning Practice Guidance, published in March 
2014 furthermore reinforces the NPPF’s commitment to requiring good design by 
stating that “Achieving good design is about creating places, buildings or spaces that 
work well for everyone, look good, last well and will adapt to the needs of future 
generations. Good design responds in a practical and creative way to both the 
function and identity of a place.” (paragraph 001). 

17.3 Criterion a. and c. of Policy ENV1 of the Replacement Local Plan are also relevant in 
this instance. These state that planning permission will be granted for development 
provided it is in accordance with other Local Plan policies and that proposals are, 
amongst other things, of a high standard of design which have regard to the 
appearance of the area and do not adversely affect the area by reason of their scale, 
bulk, form, layout or materials.

17.4 Policy 10 of the GBACS looks at design and enhancing local identity and reflects the 
guidance contained in both the NPPF and Replacement Local Plan policies. 

17.5 The masterplan, parameter plans and the Design and Access Statement provide an 
appropriate framework within which to shape a new neighbourhood that will integrate 
cohesively into this site located at the junction between Gedling’s built and natural 
environment. There are a number of matters which have been considered before 
formulating this opinion. 

17.6 As aforementioned, the proposals have been subject to a series of OPUN Design 
Reviews. The Design Review process drew attention to the unique setting of the 
development adjacent to the Gedling Country Park and the need to provide robust, 
legible and direct pedestrian connections to it for both new and existing residents. 
The Landscape Strategy includes a proposed greenway in the western half of the 
development, crossing from north to south in order to provide a pedestrian and 
cycle-friendly link between Arnold Lane and the Country Park. Equally, a dedicated 
footpath link leading from the local centre area across the GAR to the country-park is 
also proposed, promoting accessibility for those in the eastern half of the 
development as well as existing properties nearer to the proposed main access road 
into the site. 

17.7 It is considered that the development collectively provides an appropriate mix of 
differing densities, typologies and heights of dwellings within the neighbourhood, in 
keeping with the surrounding area. The proposed buildings are generally 2 storeys 
tall, with additional height (up to 4 storeys) used adjacent to the primary school and 
local shops to create a natural sense of centre. Larger houses have been used along 

Page 58



the Arnold Road boundary to maintain the character of the existing houses along this 
local route. Equally, higher density housing is concentrated along the principal 
arterial roads and around the urban square and commercially orientated local centre, 
to support their roles as more active centres of the development. The structure of 
lower density housings graduating out towards the country park and away from the 
main arterial routes of the development was a key design outcome of the OPUN 
design reviews. 

17.8 The use of front facing development along Arnold Lane is characteristic of existing 
properties along the road and helps to avoid the presentation of inactive frontages 
from the development. Equally, the scheme arranges houses in perimeter blocks to 
maintain strong frontages to any public realm and footpath links, thereby supporting 
a safe environment through natural surveillance. 

17.9 The dominant building material proposed would be brickwork, which accords with the 
existing dwellings in close proximity to the site. Four different types of brickwork are 
proposed to create subtly different character areas across the development (areas 
A1, A2, A3 and A4) as set out in the Design and Access Statement. Additionally, 
brickwork, rendering and boarding will be used to enhance corner plots which will act 
as keynote buildings to support orientation within the development. 

17.10 The plans and typology of streets help to provide a clear hierarchy of streetscapes 
throughout the development in order to support site legibility and character. The 
Main Street which would run through the development connects the two GAR 
roundabouts and is clearly demarcated by an avenue of trees and wider footways 
and road width. The Main Street also coincides with higher density design and 
landmark buildings and stronger levels of public realm to signify its status as the 
main road within the development. 

17.11 The Avenue, which connects the GAR to Arnold Lane, will also use an avenue of 
street trees to provide a strong legible entrance to the development from both access 
points. More secondary routes will have narrower carriageways with smaller lanes 
designed as shared surface routes to encourage slower vehicle speeds and support 
the aspiration of ‘streets for people’.

17.12 Overall, it is clear that the design reviews undertaken prior to the submission of the 
application have resulted in a scheme which reflects the key characteristics of the 
area. I am content that the design of the scheme, both in terms of the 
masterplanning and the detailed design of Phase 1, is of a high quality and that it 
accords with Section 7 of the NPPF and GBACS Policy 10. 

18 Phasing

18.1 The whole site is envisaged to be delivered over a 15 year period, with build out 

Page 59



rates averaging between 60-80 dwellings per year.

18.2 The development will be phased in 3 phases. The phasing of the full planning 
permission, known as Phase 1, is divided into two parts: 

 Phase 1A comprises the first 315 homes, the amount that can be 
delivered before the GAR is completed and opened for use. This is a 
result of the transport modelling work which shows the number of houses 
that could be accommodated through the existing local highway network. 
A phasing condition capping this number of homes for Phase 1A will 
ensure that the impact on the local road network is sufficiently mitigated. 
According to the applicant’s latest construction schedule, the first 315 
homes are only expected to be delivered by 2022. 

 Phase 1B constitutes the remaining 191 homes that form part of the full 
planning element, delivering a total of 506 homes across Phase 1. These 
are expected to be completed by 2026. 

18.3 Up to 544 homes can be built as part of the outline permission element, identified as 
Phase 2, amounting to an overall scheme of 1050 homes. Phase 1B and Phase 2 
will be subject to appropriate conditions to ensure these homes are only built post-
completion of the GAR. 

18.4 The local centre (including shops and health centre) and primary school are phased 
for delivery as part of Phase 2 of the development. These will be covered through a 
subsequent reserved matters application. 

18.5 I am content that appropriate phasing of the development can be controlled by 
condition to ensure the protection of the existing roads and populations, and to 
ensure that the scheme responds to the issues in the area at the time of 
development. 

19 Open Space and Recreation

19.1 GBRLP Policy R3 requires that residential development on sites above 0.4 hectares 
should provide a minimum of 10% local open space to serve that development. As 
the site area for residential development amounts to 33.12 hectares a total of 3.3 
hectares of local open space is required. 

19.2 The SPD for open space provision requires that 40% of the minimum 10% open 
space provision should be informal play area or NEAP. This results in a total 
requirement for provision for children and young people of 1.32ha (within the overall 
3.3 ha requirement). 

19.3 The landscape framework seeks to reflect the transition from the urban edge of 
Gedling to the rural edge of the Gedling Country Park immediately to the north, with 
a more naturalistic environment proposed at the northern half of the site and more 

Page 60



urban environment proposed to the south-east of the site. 

19.4 A series of open spaces are proposed throughout the development, including pocket 
parks, an urban square and linear green space along the former mineral railway line 
which will provide a woodland walk with informal play spaces. Further open space is 
included as part of the Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SUDS) network. 

19.5 The parameter plan specifies that 1.87 ha of open space will be provided at Phase 1, 
comprising a play space, the urban square, swales running along Arnold Lane and 
the parts of the mineral railway line green space. This equates to 12% provision of 
open space against the Phase 1 site area of 15.03 ha. 

19.6 For Phase 2 of the proposed development, 4.16 hectares of open space are 
proposed, comprising the rest of the mineral railway line green space, green space 
to be provided as part of the Lambley Lane element of development, another play 
space and further green space that forms part of the SUDS network. This equates to 
23% of the 18.09 ha site area for Phase 2. 

19.7 The urban square proposed within Phase 1 will be the focus and most significant 
public space for the new community, complementing surrounding proposed uses for 
the local centre and school as the focus of activity. It will provide a play and 
recreation area, amenity grassland, feature tree planting and formal footpaths. 

19.8 The existing tree belt running near to the northern edge of the site associated with 
the former colliery railway track is to be thinned but retained as a distinctive 
landscape feature, creating a linear east-west pedestrian and cycle route through the 
site. Incidental natural play features, such as balancing logs and boulders will also 
be provided throughout. This will primarily come forward in Phase 2. 

19.9 Phase 2 will also incorporate a greenway running north-south through the site to 
provide a direct pedestrian and cycle link between Arnold Lane and the Country 
Park. Naturalistic planting and swales, alongside a gateway space to Arnold Lane, 
will demarcate the link. 

19.10 I have given consideration to the comments from Sport England, however, the 
requests are made on a non-statutory basis, and use a formulaic tool that does not 
take into account real world scenarios. Open space provision in general on the site 
exceeds policy requirements, and the Lambley Lane open space, which provides 
playing pitches, is located adjacent to the site. There is no local assessment at 
present to require the sports provision requested by Sport England, and as such it 
would be difficult to robustly defend any requirement placed on the applicant. 

19.11 Similarly, the Parks and Recreation officer requested that a NEAP be provided as 
part of the scheme. Play equipment is available currently at Lambley Lane open 

Page 61



space, which could serve the population associated with Phase 1a of the 
development. The parameters plan shows 0.775ha of play space would be provided 
in Phase 1 of the development, with a further 0.065ha provided at Phase 2. There 
are opportunities for play equipment to be included within the open space provided 
for Phase 2 of the scheme, and this will be controlled during the approval of reserved 
matters. 

19.12 Overall, approximately 6.1 hectares of open space is proposed, a provision of 18% 
over all phases of the site, compared to the policy requirement of 10%. There would 
be opportunities through the reserved matters approval process for Phase 2 to 
further develop the detailed design of these open spaces to meet local requirements.   

20 Environment

20.1 The current application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement, 
which considers the environmental impacts of the development proposals in 
respect of the following matters:

 Landscape and Visual Effects
 Traffic and Transportation
 Air Quality
 Noise
 Water Resources and Flood Risk
 Land Contamination
 Ecology
 Waste
 Socio Economic Impacts

21 Landscape and Visual Effects

21.1 The proposal raises significant landscape impacts initially due to the change of use 
of the land to residential. There would be significant visual effects on Gedling 
Country Park during construction phase and significant visual effects on Gedling 
Country Park, Scotgrave Farm and Lambley Lane following completion of the 
development. Most of the impacts relate to the construction phase of development 
as there are considered to be moderate beneficial impacts by Year 15 due to the 
increase in tree cover, as set out in the ES. The agent proposes implementation of a 
long-term landscape management plan which would incorporate the management 
and maintenance of landscape mitigation measures.  

21.2 GBACS Policies 10 and 16 requires a landscape character approach towards 
assessing the impact of proposals on the landscape. Proposals should protect, 
conserve or, where appropriate, enhance landscape character. The Greater 

Page 62



Nottinghamshire Landscape Character Assessment (GNLCA) includes the 
application site mainly within the Nottinghamshire County Character Area – Mid 
Nottinghamshire Farmlands. 

21.3 In addition, Policy 16 of the GBACS identifies that the application site is located 
within part of the Sub-Regional Green Infrastructure Corridor, which should be 
protected and enhanced, as well as being a site subject to regeneration. The policy 
goes on to state that priority for the location of new or enhanced strategic Green 
Infrastructure will be given to locations for major residential development identified in 
Policy 2 of the GBACS, the Greenwood Community Forest, and Urban Fringe Areas. 
The proposed scheme includes strong green infrastructure provision, as set out in 
the assessment of open space provided (Section 19). 

21.4 Paragraph 109 of the NPPF states, amongst other things, that the planning system 
should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by protecting 
and enhancing valued landscapes. 

21.5 I note that a small part of the Lambley/Burton Joyce Mature Landscape Area (MLA) 
is located within the boundary for Phase 2 of the development which is being 
considered in outline. GBRLP ENV37 requires consideration of the need for 
development to outweigh the need to safeguard the MLA’s intrinsic value. In my 
opinion the need for housing and its strategic importance for the Local Plan process 
outweighs the requirement to safeguard this small part of the MLA.

21.6 I note the comments received from the Nottinghamshire County Council Landscape 
Department which support the application for the Phase 1 of the development 
provided that all mitigation measures stated in the Landscape and Visual Impact 
Assessment (LVIA) are implemented, and plans are reviewed in line with their 
submitted comments. The implementation of Phase 1, whilst having a moderate 
adverse impact on the character of the area, would not result in a significant adverse 
impact on the landscape character as a whole subject to the mitigation outline in the 
LVIA and detailed landscape drawings. Should planning permission be approved the 
suggested mitigation outlined in the LVIA would be required to be provided by 
planning condition.

21.7 With regard to the Greenwood Community Forest and Green Infrastructure, there 
would be significant areas of new tree planting brought forward as part of the long-
term landscape management plan which in my view would comply with the 
requirements of Policy ENV43 of the RLP and Policy 16 of the GBACS. 

21.8 The potential landscape and visual effects of the proposed development have been 
assessed in the Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) of Chapter 5 of 
the Environmental Statement. I note that in general the County Council agree with 
the findings of the assessment but some effects have been underestimated. These 

Page 63



include the effects on the residents on Lambley Lane and residents on Jessops Lane 
which are directly opposite the site with no boundary vegetation.   

21.9 I note the additional comments received from the County which recommends 
amendments to the submitted Soft Landscape Scheme Drawings to incorporate a 
more appropriate mix of vegetation native to the area and the addition of trees to the 
lagoons. Should planning permission be approved I would suggest attaching a 
condition to the permission requiring the amended soft landscape schemes to reflect 
the details required.  

21.10 Whilst I note that the County Landscape Team have raised concerns with regard to 
the lack of pedestrian and cycle routes to the Country Park in Phase 1I do not 
consider that it would be appropriate to require such detail until the submission of 
reserved matters application relating to Phase 2 following the completion of the 
GAR. 

21.11 Objections were received from the County Council with respect to the development 
of Phase 2, in particular with regard to visual impacts along the northern boundary of 
the site and along Lambley Lane. NCC requires more consideration to be given to 
substantial planting on the northern boundary of the site to reduce the visual impact 
of the development from the Gedling Country Park. They suggest that to mitigate the 
noise/visual impact of the GAR on residents, buildings on Arnold Lane should be set 
back further. Whilst I note the comments relating to Phase 2, I consider, given that 
the development is outline with the final design to be approved through reserved 
matters, appropriate landscape mitigation could be secured via condition. Currently 
the baseline landscape is predominantly rural in nature. Due to the change in 
baseline by Phase 2 (due to the presence of the completed GAR) I also consider that 
pre-commencement conditions could be attached to update the LVIA to incorporate 
the parcel of development from Lambley Lane. 

21.12 I have already concluded above, that in overall terms the impact on the proposed 
development on the Mature Landscape Area would be acceptable under GBRLP 
Policy 37.
  

21.13 Noting all the considerations above, and accepting the visual impacts that this large 
scale development would have, particularly at construction phase; I consider that 
amended mitigation and landscape proposals (secured via condition), managed and 
delivered over the whole site would make the development visually acceptable under 
the provisions of Policy ENV1 (b) of the GBRLP and Policy 10 of the GBACS. I also 
note that the design of the new development would allow for over 20% open space 
to be retained and managed, due mainly to the retention of the woodland belt that is 
to the north of the site. It is my view that this feature would help make the sense of 
place and would further mitigate the visual impacts of the GAR for residents of the 
development.

Page 64



22 Transport and Connectivity

22.1 Existing access, highway network, and Public Rights of Way

22.2 Access to the site is currently gained via the former entrance to the 
Household Waste and Recycling Centre. This access is located towards to 
the southeast corner of the site, on A6211 Arnold Lane.

22.3 The A6211 is the main road which runs along the southern boundary of the 
site and runs between Woodthorpe and Netherfield. This is a radial route that 
connects into the A612 and A60 towards Mansfield. There are a number of 
roads from the A6211 accessing residential homes within the Phoenix Ward 
of Gedling Borough. There are also vehicular and public transport routes 
through the Phoenix Ward that access Westdale Lane and the City Centre. 

22.4 The application site has no public access and no rights of way. In the wider 
context, the nearest rights of way are a footpath that runs from Crimea Farm 
from Spring Lane towards Mapperley Plains Road, and a footpath which runs 
south from Gedling Wood to the east of Lambley Lane.

Policy Context

22.5 Paragraph 32 of the NPPF requires that safe and suitable access to the site 
can be achieved and that any improvements to the transport network 
effectively limit the significant impacts of the development. The NPPF requires 
all major planning applications to be supported by an appropriate Transport 
Assessment (TA). A Transport Assessment and a Travel Plan have been 
submitted with the planning application. 

22.6 The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (March 2014) states that 
Transport Assessments, Statements and Travel Plans can positively 
contribute to:

 Encouraging sustainable travel
 Lessening traffic generation and its detrimental impacts
 Reducing carbon emissions and climate impacts 
 Creating accessible, connected, inclusive communities 
 Improving health outcomes and quality of life
 Improving road safety 
 Reducing the need for new development to increase existing road 

capacity or provide new roads

22.7 GBACS Policy 2 requires the delivery of the GAR to enable the 

Page 65



comprehensive development of the site. The GAR is identified under GBACS 
Policy 15.4 b) as a transport infrastructure priority. 

22.8 The amount of car parking should accord with and reflect the requirements of 
the Gedling Borough Council Residential Car Parking Standards SPD (2012). 

Transport and connectivity considerations

22.9 Significant highway modelling work was undertaken previously to determine 
the impact of the proposed development on the existing local highway 
network and how much development can be accommodated on the local 
highway network prior to the construction and opening of the GAR. 
Information was sourced from the following documents, supplied by 
Nottinghamshire County Council and referenced within the submitted TA:

 
 MVA (Systra) Gedling Colliery Development Assessment (July 2013) 
 WYG Gedling Access Road (GAR) Transport Assessment (July 2014) 

22.10 The assessment work undertaken by MVA determined that 315 dwellings 
could be accommodated on the existing local highway network prior to the 
construction and opening of the GAR. The 315 dwellings would be accessed 
from Arnold Lane. 

22.11 The first phase (Phase 1A) for which full planning permission is sought 
requires access from Arnold Lane. The transport assessment considers that 
the development can be served satisfactorily on the surrounding road 
network. The transport assessment concludes that there would not be any 
significant adverse impacts on the highway network subject to appropriate 
mitigation.  

22.12 Upon completion the development would be served by four new accesses 
onto the existing and proposed highway network. Phase 1A and 1B of the 
development would be served by an upgraded access onto Arnold Lane. This 
point of access presently serves the disused household waste and recycling 
centre and is not open to any through traffic. 

22.13 Phase 1B and Phase 2 of the development rely upon the GAR and two new 
roundabouts would be formed as part of this to serve the development in 
addition to junction improvements to the existing road network. A separate 
access onto the link road between Lambley Lane and the GAR would serve 
the Lambley Lane portion of the site. 

22.14 The development has been designed following extensive consultation in order 
to deliver a scheme which offers a modern and well-conceived housing 

Page 66



solution for this part of Nottingham, focussing on urban expansion and the 
provision of the GAR. The overall layout centres upon a small shopping 
centre, school and urban square with higher density residential buildings in 
this area. The principle arterial roads (‘Main Street’ and ‘The Avenue’) lead 
through the site and culminate at this point in order to form a logical centre 
point. The development proposals have been influenced by “Manual for 
Streets 1 & 2” which encourages designers to move away from standardised 
prescriptive measures and adopt a more innovative approach in order to 
create high quality places for all users, ages and abilities. 

22.15 I am mindful that the road layout has been guided through extensive 
consultation comprising of design reviews with the Highway Authority to meet 
their standards with the need for safe access and circulation. Revised layout 
and engineering plans have been received, highlighting the extent of 
adoptable highway, and the engineering appraisal (junction and forward 
visibility) for Phase 1, which are deemed to be satisfactory by the Highway 
Authorities. Conditions have been suggested to require the same level of 
detail to be provided for the reserved matters application(s) for Phase 2. I am 
now satisfied following the submission of these documents that a satisfactory 
internal road layout has been achieved that would create a safe and suitable 
access to the site and good connectivity to the existing and future road 
networks. 

22.16 It is my opinion that the detailed plans for Phase 1A and 1B provide good 
legibility and character, and a hierarchy of street types has been established. 
This follows best practise ‘place-making’ approaches and is important in 
developing street types that have their own character and distinction. The 
plans have established various street widths, types of building, orientation, 
frontage treatment and landscaping which all helps the legibility of the space 
for people trying to navigate their way around by foot, car or bicycle. Whilst 
indicative at this stage, I am also of the opinion that a good internal road 
layout can be achieved at reserved matters stage for the Phase 2 
development, that closely relates to the detailed Phases 1A and 1B. 

22.17 A Travel Plan Document has been produced with a package of measures to 
be implemented for both the residential and non-residential elements of this 
scheme, in order to meet the key aims and objectives which are as follows: - 
 Welcome Packs to new residents, incorporating: -  
- Plans of safe pedestrian routes to all amenities;
- Details of Nottingham Cycle Map would be distributed;
- Bus timetable and routes maps of services operational within Gedling; 

and
- Information about the Travel Plan including how it works, why it is 

required and the purpose.

Page 67



 details on local Apps which could be of benefit to residents such as 
Connected’s  Journey Planner app and also those from local public 
transport operators; Promotion of car share websites/databases;

 pedestrian / cycle improvements, showers and changing facilities for 
non-residential users;

 information boards;
 marketing days;
 dedicated car share parking spaces.  

22.18 The Travel Plan scheme would require a Travel Plan Coordinator as a key 
contact point for residents and other people who will use the site. The Travel 
Plan Coordinator would be an appointed external consultant. They would be 
appointed 3 months before first occupation of any part of the development 
and would be funded by the developer of the site, their details passed onto 
NCC so they can liaise with the Travel Plan Team to assess how the Travel 
Plan is progressing. I am satisfied that the submitted Travel Plan would satisfy 
the requirements of the NPPG (March 2014) and would promote sustainable 
travel on the site.  

22.19 In order to promote sustainable transport and connectivity, and to reduce the 
need for vehicle journeys, NCC have requested contributions towards bus 
services, and the inclusion of bus infrastructure within the internal road 
network of the development.  I would recommend that a condition is attached 
to any permission requiring the package of measures proposed to be 
delivered in accordance with the submitted Travel Plan, and for contributions 
to be agreed as part of a s106 agreement. Network Rail also requested 
contributions to local stations, however there is no policy backing for this 
request. Although this request has been considered, no contribution is 
deemed to be required to Network Rail, given the viability issues relating to 
the development, the substantial contribution is being made to NCC for public 
transport improvements, and the absence of any policy requirement for the 
contribution. 

22.20 The development of a pedestrian/cycle network both within the site and as 
part of the wider masterplan was seen as an integral part of the transport 
infrastructure. The following measures to provide accessibility by foot and 
cycle are proposed: 
 provision of meaningful pedestrian/cycle routes through the site, linking 

to the urban square and children’s play area and forming a connection 
to the future primary school and the Gedling Country Park; 

 the internal road layouts are designed to ensure low traffic speeds and 
promote safe walking and high permeability through the site;

 houses are orientated to ensure sufficient natural surveillance of routes, 
providing a sense of safety and security for users; and 

Page 68



 pedestrian and cycle links have been located so as to encourage new 
and existing residents to use them. All links would be suitable for use 
by disabled people. 

22.21 I am satisfied that suitable pedestrian and cycle linkages have been created 
to promote sustainable transport and circulation within the internal road 
layout. I am also satisfied that the proposed routes connect well with existing 
routes surrounding the site. 

22.22 In regard to the proposed car parking arrangements the Gedling Borough 
Council Parking Provision for Residential Developments (SPD) (2012) is 
relevant.

 
22.23 The development provides off street car parking provision for each individual 

residential unit. A total of 1049 allocated car parking spaces are provided. 
This is a high level of provision within each residence, with 2-3 off street car 
parking spaces for each dwelling type and size. It is my opinion, when looking 
at the requirements of the SPD, that: the allocated car parking provision is 
generous and would allow for the majority of visitor parking to be 
accommodated within the individual curtilages of dwellings. I also note that 
the Highway Authority support the high level of off-street car parking provision 
serving this development. 

22.24 In addition, the urban square would provide provision for 23 unallocated car 
parking spaces. There would also be an additional 19 unallocated car parking 
spaces serving the residential flats. This would equate to 42 unallocated car 
parking spaces on Phase 1A and 1B of the development. 

22.25 This high level of provision of defined allocated and unallocated spaces 
means that on street demand is likely to be low. When looking at the Gedling 
Borough Council car parking SPD, the allocated and unallocated provision 
equates to 1091 defined spaces to be provided compared to an overall 
requirement for 1125.4 parking spaces. This leaves a shortfall of just 34.4 
unallocated car parking spaces. 

22.26 Negotiations have taken place with the Highway Authority with regards to the 
potential for on-street car parking throughout the development. In line with the 
6C’s Design Guide, the Highway Authority wish to see well designed parking 
layouts both on and off street that minimise the likelihood of on-street car 
parking problems. 

22.27 The Highway Authority have reviewed the tracking of the road layout and 
conclude that, in principle, roads and streets above 5.5 metres in width are 
suitable to accommodate some on-street car parking. Given that some of 

Page 69



adoptable streets and roads are more than 5.5 metres wide I am satisfied that 
the shortfall of 24.4 spaces for visitors to the development could be 
accommodated satisfactorily on-street without causing highway safety 
implications to other road users. 

22.28 Residents and the Ward Councillor have raised concerns over the impact of 
the development during the construction phase on Arnold Lane, particularly 
prior to the completion of the GAR. Construction traffic will be controlled via a 
CEMP, including any construction which takes place prior to the completion of 
the GAR. 

22.29 Prior to the application being submitted the County Council Highways 
Authority commissioned two documents that fed into the Transport 
Assessment (TA) produced. The travel assessment concluded that 315 
homes could be constructed prior to the completion of the GAR using the 
existing road network without any significant highway safety implications as a 
result. 

22.30 Whilst I appreciate that there would be some less than substantial localised 
impacts during the construction and completion of Phase 1A of the 
development on the existing road network, on completion of the GAR there 
would be measurable improvements along Arnold Lane as a result of the new 
road infrastructure. It is my opinion that the weight to be given to the delivery 
of a new sustainable community on the edge of an urban settlement would 
outweigh the less than substantial harm caused by increased traffic Phase 1A 
of the development. I also note that the phasing of the development would 
suggest that, with the proposed ‘build-out’ rate, that only 80 homes would be 
completed prior to the anticipated completion of the GAR in April 2019.  

22.31 Issues have also been raised about the impact on the existing road network 
serving Gedling, in particular Shelford Rise, and the potential for an increase 
in vehicle movements on this route from the new development into the City 
Centre. 

22.32 The GAR would need to be completed before more than 315 homes are 
constructed. The TA concludes that there would be improvements to the 
circulation and numbers of cars in the area on delivery of the GAR, 
highlighting its strategic importance. I am of the opinion that the more direct 
routes in the area would be from ‘Main Street’ to Mapperley Plains or via the 
GAR, and therefore these are more likely to be used by future residents. I 
therefore do not attach significant weight to the potential for people to use the 
linkages through the Phoenix Ward as a reason to refuse this application. 
Given the findings of the TA, I also consider that the existing road network can 
satisfactory accommodate the additional vehicle movements anticipated from 

Page 70



Phase 1A of the development. 

22.33 Overall, a variety of transport interventions are being developed and these 
would be secured by conditions that form part of the recommendation on this 
application. These conditions have been prepared in full consultation with the 
Highway Authority and Members can therefore have confidence that the 
proposed conditions provide a robust framework for ensuring that the 
transport impact of the proposed development would be satisfactorily 
addressed. 

22.34 Given the above considerations I am satisfied that a suitable road layout has 
been achieved that would safely accommodate motor vehicles, bicycles and 
pedestrians. I am also satisfied that the internal layout and the proposed 
parking provision would account for the cars of residents and visitors to the 
site without causing undue highway safety implications for other road users. 
For these reasons I consider the development to accord with the requirements 
of the NPPF, NPPG, GBACS and the GBRLP. 

23 Air Quality

23.1 The NPPF states that: ‘Planning policies should sustain compliance with and 
contribute towards EU limit values or national objectives for pollutants, taking into 
account the presence of Air Quality Management Areas and the cumulative impacts 
on air quality from individual Sites in local areas. Planning decisions should ensure 
that any new developments in Air Quality Management Areas are consistent with the 
local air quality action plan’.

23.2 The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) launched on 6 March 2014 to 
support the NPPF contains guidance on air quality. It requires local planning 
authorities to consider whether development would expose people to existing 
sources of air pollutants, and/or give rise to potentially significant impact (such as 
dust) during construction for nearby sensitive locations.

23.3 Saved Policy ENV 11 of the GBRLP states that planning permission would not be 
granted for pollution generating development which would result in an unacceptable 
risk to the health and safety of residents or users of nearby properties as well as 
unacceptable nuisance to users or residents. Planning conditions will be imposed if 
restrictions or mitigation of pollution effects would make a proposal acceptable.

23.4 The ES contains a chapter assessing air quality impacts and was accompanied by a 
Supporting Air Quality Technical Report (SAQTR). A second revision was re-
submitted as part of the request for further information to support the Environmental 
Statement, as per Regulation 22 of The Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011. The revised report was requested to address 

Page 71



comments from Gedling’s Scientific Officer about the impact of the completed 
development. Specifically, concerns were raised regarding the emissions mitigation 
proposed and shortfalls within the air quality modelling process that has been used 
to assess impact. Specifically, the officer highlighted an omission of up-to-date 
datasets for background concentrations and monitoring data, the omission of 
emissions sources within the assessment, shortfalls with the model verification 
process and requested clarity over whether transport data has been included.

23.5 The Scientific Officer is satisfied that the revised ES addresses the comments 
previously made and has assessed the impact of the finished development (based 
on the MVA (Systra) traffic assessment carried out in 2013). However, the revised 
ES does not address the impact the development will have on the wider community 
and in particular the commuter routes into Nottingham. 

23.6 The revised ES concludes that following the implementation of proposed mitigation 
measures, construction phase effects on air quality (dust soiling and human health 
effects) would be negligible and are therefore considered not significant. The 
Scientific Officer questions this conclusion as a major development of this size will 
have a detrimental impact on emissions and therefore requested a damage costs 
calculation to inform the value of mitigation measures to offset the impact of the 
development. 

23.7 The Scientific Officer raised concerns that current mitigation proposed does not 
satisfy what is normally associated with such developments and requested a 
commitment to incorporate provision for an EV (electric vehicle) charging point(s) as 
per GBC ‘Air Quality and Emissions Mitigation Planning Guidance Note’ to allow 
residents and users of any schools/commercial buildings to charge electric/plug-in 
hybrid vehicles into the future. Given that all these allocations are only in outline this 
could form part of the reserved matters approval that will be required for Phase 2 of 
the development. A contribution of £2000 towards air quality improvements has been 
requested and will be included with the S106. I am therefore satisfied that this 
concern could be overcome.

23.8 The Scientific Officer also requested that low NOx boilers were installed for 
residential and commercial buildings and that the developer should consider working 
with broadband infrastructure providers such a Virgin/ BT Open Reach to install the 
infrastructure to allow ‘fibre to home’ in order to remove the need to commute to 
work and make home working a viable option. These measures should be 
considered by the developer, however they are not required by local policy. 

23.9 Given the above considerations I am of the opinion that whilst there would be some 
impact on air quality as a result of the development, all outstanding air quality 
concerns could be managed as part of the reserved matters application for Phase 2 
of the development. 

Page 72



24 Noise

24.1 It is expected that noise created during the construction of the development will be 
mitigated through standard noise control measures implemented via the CEMP. The 
principal noise sources associated with the development post construction are 
anticipated to be related to the increase in road traffic which will predominantly be on 
the proposed GAR. The noise impact assessment submitted by the agent has been 
reviewed by Public Protection who recommend a condition requiring that dwellings 
facing the GAR, those within 60m of Arnold Lane and Lambley Lane, and dwellings 
overlooking the electricity sub-station will require enhanced glazing in order to meet 
internal noise targets (86 buildings in total).

24.2 I am satisfied that the noise levels would be appropriate for the development subject 
to the implementation of enhanced glazing as proposed in the Noise Assessment.

25 Water resources, flood risk, and drainage

25.1 I note that the application is located within Flood Zone 1 and is therefore considered 
to have a low level risk of fluvial flooding. The Environment Agency was consulted on 
the application. Most of their comments are considered in the contamination chapter 
(26.0). Overall the Environment Agency is satisfied with the information and 
conclusions presented, and are content that the risks to controlled waters is minimal 
based on the site investigation data available. 

25.2 Given the site’s location in Flood Zone 1, I accept that the proposal is in an area of 
low probability of flooding and accords with the sequential test for locating 
development in low risk flood zones, as set out in Policy 1 of the GBACS and 
Section 10 of the NPPF. 

25.3 Paragraph 100 of the NPPF states that Local Plans should take into account climate 
change and use opportunities offered by new development to reduce the causes and 
impacts of flooding. 

25.4 Paragraph 103 states: ‘When determining planning applications, local planning 
authorities should ensure flood risk is not increased elsewhere’

25.5 The Environment Agency’s flood map for surface water flooding indicates that the 
site is located in an area that has a ‘very low’ chance of flooding from surface water. 
However, given that the proposal is for a comprehensive redevelopment of the site 
careful consideration needs to be given to the impacts of the development on 
surface water flooding and existing water courses. The Environment Agency advise 
that the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), being Nottinghamshire County Council, 
should be consulted on any proposals. 

Page 73



25.6 Paragraph 030 of the PPG states that the objectives of site specific Flood Risk 
Assessments (FRA’s) are to establish: 

- Whether a proposed development is likely to be affected by current or 
future flooding from any source;

- Whether it will increase flood risk elsewhere;
- Whether the measures proposed to deal with these effects and risks 

are appropriate;
- The evidence for the local planning authority to apply (if necessary) the 

Sequential Test; and;
- Whether the development will be safe and pass the Exception Test.

25.7 Paragraph 031 states: ‘A flood risk assessment should also be appropriate to the 
scale, nature and location of development.’

25.8 GBACS Policy 1 reflects the NPPF and requires development to avoid areas of flood 
risk and not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere and where possible reduce flood 
risk. GBACS Policy 1 requires all new development to incorporate sustainable urban 
drainage systems (SuDS). 

25.9 Following consultation the LLFA accept that the submitted FRA and drainage 
strategy is generally acceptable, subject to conditions in respect of details of the 
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems. In terms of foul drainage, Severn Trent have 
not raised any objections, therefore there are assumed to be no issues with 
connecting to foul drainage systems.

25.10 Overall, the application site is at low risk of flooding, and an acceptable FRA has 
been undertaken. Subject to acceptable SuDS details being submitted, the 
development is acceptable in terms of water resources, flood risk and drainage. 

26 Land contamination

26.1 Policy ENV3 of the RLP states that development will not be permitted on 
contaminated land or land where there is a risk of contamination unless practicable 
and effective measures are taken to treat, contain or control any contamination so as 
not to expose the occupiers of the development and neighbouring land users to any 
unacceptable risk or threaten the structural integrity of any building built on or 
adjoining the site.  The Policy goes on to state that the Borough Council will impose 
conditions relating to required remedial measures or monitoring processes where 
appropriate.

26.2 Section 11 of the NPPF states at paragraph 109 that the planning system should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by preventing new 
development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from 

Page 74



unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution. 

26.3 Paragraph 121 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that the 
site is suitable for its new use, taking account of ground conditions, including 
pollution arising from previous uses, and any proposals for mitigation including land 
remediation.

26.4 I note that the Environment Agency have reviewed the Environmental Statement, in 
particular Chapter 8 relating to ground conditions. They are satisfied with the 
information and conclusions presented, namely that the risks to controlled waters are 
minimal, based on the information available. 

26.5 There is potential for contamination at the site, however there are no outstanding 
land contamination concerns, subject to site characterisation and the submission of a 
remediation scheme for each phase of the development. These details can be 
secured by condition as recommended by the Scientific Officer.

26.6 It is considered, therefore, that the proposed development would accord with Policies 
ENV3 of the RLP and Section 11 of the NPPF.

27 Ecology

27.1 GBACS Policy 17 seeks to protect local sites of biological importance in line with the 
hierarchy of designations.  

27.2 GBRLP Policy ENV 36 requires the decision maker to weigh the reasons for the 
proposal against local ecological and community value of the site.  Where 
development is permitted a balance is to be struck between the need for the 
development and ecological interest of the site with damage to be kept to a minimum 
and mitigation and compensatory measures required where relevant.

27.3 Comments were received from members of the public, concerned about the impact 
of the scheme on wildlife, and requesting that trees and hedgerows are retained.  

27.4 The application site is comprised of a mixture of environments ranging from species 
poor agricultural land to woodland and hedgerows of a higher value.

27.5 The site is not affected by any statutory designations. The most ecologically valuable 
parts of the site were assessed to be: 

 Gedling Colliery Site and Dismantled Railway Local Wildlife Site 
(hereafter referred to as Gedling Colliery LWS): extends to 35ha of 
which part falls within the site boundary. Described as having notable 
plant assemblage and dense-continuous scrub, some of which is 

Page 75



considered to be sufficiently well-developed to be considered as early 
successional semi-natural woodland, and areas of species-rich 
ephemeral/short-perennial vegetation which is now succeeding to 
closed grassland. The ES considered the LWS to be of County value. 

 pasture field off Lambley Lane: the grassland was surveyed to be of at 
least good quality semi-improved neutral grassland (moderately 
species rich). The ES considered the pasture field to be of County 
value. 

 Open Mosaic Habitat on Previously Development Land (hereafter 
referred to as OMH): early successional vegetation has begun to 
establish on a previous area of coal waste in the eastern part of the site 
which meets the criteria for Open Mosaic Habitat and is therefore 
considered to be of County value. 

 An extensive network of hedgerows of value to several important 
species-groups; bats, breeding birds and invertebrates. 

 A variety of amphibian populations considered to be of County value. 

27.6 NCC’s Ecology Officer has assessed the ecological impact and acknowledges the 
significant loss to the Gedling Colliery LWS, OMH, species-rich grassland/ lowland 
meadows and hedgerows as well as loss of habitat important to breeding birds and 
bats. The agent has accordingly worked closely with the Ecology Officer in order to 
bolster the mitigation proposals for the development to make the impact more 
acceptable. The mitigation measures proposed now include: 

 the provision of replacement habitat for the LWS on-site as part of the 
attenuation lagoons; 

 potential translocation of the OMH to a nearby receptor site; 
 the creation of a new area of species-rich grassland off-site to 

compensate the loss of the pasture field off Lambley Lane; and 
 new hedgerow planting, enhancement of retained hedgerows and new 

‘blue and green’ corridors on the site’s outer boundaries in order to 
provide additional linear habitat. 

27.7 In order to demonstrate what areas of land may be required off-site to achieve the 
proposed mitigation for the loss of the semi-improved grassland within the pasture 
field off Lambley Lane and the OMH, the DEFRA Biodiversity Offsetting Metric has 
been applied to these key habitats. The biodiversity offsetting process takes into 
account factors such as how long it is expected it will take to reach the target 
condition for the new habitat and the predicted difficulty for restoration. When these 
factors are taken into account the areas of new habitat required to achieve no net 
loss in biodiversity are greater than those that will be lost. The calculations have 
identified that for the good quality semi-improved neutral grassland in the parcel of 
land off Lambley Lane there would be a loss of 12.2 biodiversity units. This means 
that 2.6ha of land for grassland restoration would be required to offset this loss, 
which is not being proposed as part of this scheme. 

Page 76



27.8 Whilst I note that there would be some ecology shortfall with biodiversity offsetting, it 
is my opinion, given the previous uses of part of the site, that the scale of the 
development and its strategic importance within the Local Plan would outweigh this 
shortfall for a development of this size and strategic importance. Whilst I note the 
approach put forward by NCC Ecology the biodiversity matrix is not adopted policy 
and I do not consider it appropriate to attach a condition requiring this detail until this 
is a policy requirement. It is also my opinion that the satisfactory biodiversity 
offsetting can be achieved via the use of appropriate conditions. 

27.9 As re-creation of OMH is limited to the area currently present, 3.87ha of off-site land 
would be required to offset the loss of this habitat – this loss would amount to 69.7 
biodiversity units. No land has been able to be secured for this purpose, and as such 
there will be a net loss of 69.7 biodiversity units as a result of the development. 

27.10 The proposed mitigation measures will be secured through planning conditions. 

27.11 Further information was requested for the ES as the results of the winter bird survey 
were not available when the application was first submitted in November 2015. The 
results of this survey were made available in April 2016 through a Winter Bird Survey 
Report and updated Ecology chapter of the ES, as per Regulation 22 of The Town 
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011. The 
impact of the development on winter birds was concluded to be not significant, with 
the proposed green infrastructure and enhancement of retained areas of vegetation 
expected to provide compensation for any loss of winter habitat.

27.12 Overall, mitigation has been included within the scheme to minimise impacts on 
ecology, however a net loss of biodiversity (81.9 biodiversity units in total) remains 
due to the development. There may be opportunities through the reserved matters 
application(s) relating Phase 2 of the development to reduce this net loss. Updated 
landscaping plans for Phase 2 will be required by condition, this will also provide a 
mechanism to alleviate concerns about species mixes. There are assessed to be no 
significant residual effects on protected species due to the development. 

28 Socio-economic impacts

Education 

28.1 As the Local Education Authority (LEA), Nottingham County Council (NCC) estimate 
that the proposed development of 1,050 dwellings would yield an additional 221 
primary school places and 168 secondary school places. They note that based on 
current projections, both primary and secondary schools are at capacity and cannot 
accommodate the additional 221 primary places and 168 secondary places arising 

Page 77



from the proposed development. 

28.2 Phase 2 of the application includes the provision of a 210 place, single form primary 
school through the provision of 1.21 hectares of land and an indicative s106 
contribution of £3.6 million to support its build and delivery, as agreed through early 
collaboration between the developer and the LEA. 

28.3 The primary schools forms part of the second phase of development, despite 506 
homes being delivered during the first phase. In the short term this will require 
primary school places which will need to be managed through existing education 
planning, and provision for this will be included in the s.106 agreement. The 
proposed primary school is located adjacent to the local centre and urban square 
along the main access road into the site (linking Arnold Lane to the GAR), supporting 
good accessibility to it.

28.4 NCC Education also requested a further secondary education contribution of 
£2,899,680 to accommodate the additional secondary-age pupils projected to arise 
from the proposed development. Gedling Borough Council’s Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulation 123 List includes two secondary schools 
(Gedling Colliery/ Chase Farm Secondary School - Estimated Cost: £1,689,000 and 
Top Wighay Farm Secondary School – Estimated Cost: £2,816,000). 

28.5 The new development will attract CIL payments for each phase of the development. 
In order to facilitate the delivery of the GAR and the houses proposed as part of this 
application within the time required, all of the CIL monies required by this application 
will be paid towards the GAR. 

28.6 As set out in the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010, planning 
obligations may not constitute a reason for granting planning permission to the 
extent that they provide for the funding or provision of items of infrastructure which 
are to be collected through CIL as identified on a list published pursuant to 
Regulation 123 of the Regulations, therefore legally the S106 agreement cannot 
require contributions for secondary education. 

28.7 As the requirements for secondary education will remain in the CIL Regulation 123 
List, CIL contributions from future developments in the borough will continue to be 
collected to provide secondary education. 

28.8 Subject to agreement between the County as the LEA and the applicant, I am 
content that education provision associated with the site is sufficient. 

28.9 Health

28.10 The development falls within the Nottingham North and East Clinical Commissioning 

Page 78



Group (CCG) area, who calculate that the new development would result in an 
increased patient population of approximately 2625, based on the Department of 
Health calculation in HBN11-01: Facilities for Primary and Community Care 
Services, equating to a financial contribution of £525,000. Timing and mechanism for 
delivery is subject to s106 negotiations. A new 346m2 health centre is proposed as 
part of the development to accommodate primary care needs resulting from the 
development. Additionally, there are presently six GP surgeries within 1.5 miles of 
the site, offering a total of 21 GPs. 

28.11 The NPPF and Nottinghamshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy both support the 
promotion of healthy communities through the creation of safe and accessible 
environments; high quality public spaces, recreational space/sports facilities, 
community facilities and public rights of way. Consideration also needs to be given to 
access to community facilities and services as lack of these can lead to people being 
isolated and suffering from mental health conditions therefore adversely affecting 
their health and wellbeing. New developments should also be age-friendly, 
particularly for people with limiting long-term illnesses which are statistically more 
prevalent in Gedling than the national average. 

28.12 The high provision of open and green space proposed as part of the development 
will support these policy ambitions, as well the development’s proximity to existing 
sports and recreational facilities at Lambley Lane and links to Gedling Country Park. 
Additionally, the inclusion of shared streets and pedestrian and cycle ways 
throughout the development will support access to the local health centre and 
community facilities. The intended provision of a new or extended bus service to 
service the site will also support the ability of less mobile members of the population 
to visit community and health facilities as required. 

28.13 Local centre and community facilities

28.14 GBACS Policy 6 states that a new Centre of Neighbourhood Importance will be 
required to serve the Gedling Colliery/Chase Farm site. A new local centre is 
proposed covering an area of 0.6 hectares. This forms part of the Phase 2 outline 
element of the application and will accommodate a Convenience Store (400m2 
GFS), Health Centre (346m2 GFS), 3 other small units at 150m2 GFS, parking 
spaces, servicing and landscape. The Local Centre has been purposely arranged to 
form a public square and front the main urban square of the development, helping to 
create a natural neighbourhood focus. This element of the proposal is therefore 
consistent with GBACS policy. 

28.15 The estimated increase in Gedling’s population as a result of the development will 
give rise to increased pressure on existing community facilities such as community 
halls and places of worship. In the absence of any new provision, the increase in 
local resident population will give rise to an increase in demand on such facilities. 

Page 79



28.16 The local centre proposed as part of the application will help to create a sense of 
place for the community, in accordance with the GBACS. 

28.17 Economic benefits  

28.18 The economic effects of the development arise from both the construction and 
operational phases of the scheme. 

28.19 During construction, the ES estimates that approximately 1,140 person-years of 
construction work would be generated, equivalent to an average of 76 construction 
job opportunities per year. Given the temporary nature of construction work, a total of 
114 Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) jobs would be created. 

28.20 Additionally, it is likely that some local businesses as well as the regional economy 
would stand to benefit from the trade linkages established to construction of the 
development (e.g. construction materials), leading to further indirect jobs. There will 
also be a minor benefits created by increases in expenditure from those working on 
the construction site. Research by the Centre for Economics and Business Research 
(CEBR) for the National Housing Federation (2013) indicates that the construction 
industry has an indirect and induced employment multiplier of 1.51, so the FTE 
construction employment indicates that a further 38 FTE indirect/induced jobs could 
be supported in the region as a result of such construction-related expenditure.

28.21 Some employment benefits would arise from the operational phase of the scheme, 
although the predominantly residential nature of the scheme means employment 
generation is limited. The outline element of the scheme includes a small local centre 
comprising 400m2 convenience retailing with possible elements of financial and 
professional services and café/restaurants/takeaways (3 x 150m2 units each). 

28.22 Given that these uses typically attract one full time equivalent member of staff per 19 
square metres, the new local centre is likely to generate circa 16 FTE jobs. The 
majority of these positions are likely to fall within the leisure/sales brackets of 
employment characteristics with a small number of potential managerial roles, and 
attract locally based and/ or part-time works. 

28.23 In terms of the economic impact of the incoming population, the development is 
expected to add approximately 2,415 persons to the local population (from the 1050 
dwellings). This would be equivalent to an increase of 2.3% over the existing 
population in Gedling Borough. The positive impacts generated by this increase 
could include an increase in the number of economically active persons within the 
borough, given the variety of housing types on offer. Additionally, a review of Chase 
Farm against the 2014 ONS Family Spending Survey indicates that the total 
expenditure from all residents within the development is expected to be £27.8 million 

Page 80



per annum. Of this, £5 million is expected to be associated with households that 
previously lived more than 10 miles from the site.

28.24 The applicant has produced an Employment and Skills Plan (ESP) in collaboration 
with Gedling’s Economic Development Officer, and is subject to an agreement 
outside the planning process. The ESP sets out the applicant’s commitment to use 
the investment in Chase Farm to actively participate in the economic and social 
regeneration of local communities and neighbourhoods. The Plan specifically seeks 
to: 

 reduce local unemployment by: tailoring target areas such as Killisick; 
offering two year apprenticeships that provide an opportunity to gain 
NVQ Level 1 and NVQ Level 2 in a variety of construction trades; and 
implementing Keepmoat’s Kickstart Programme which offers back-to-
work, pre-employment, pre-apprenticeship and up-skilling programmes 
to support routes into work; 

 support young unemployed people into work, working with local 
providers such as Central College, and local agencies, such as 
JobCentre Plus to promote work placement opportunities; 

 target local labour, suppliers, subcontractors and SMEs in the delivery 
of new dwellings to maximise the impact on the local economy, through 
‘Meet the Buyer’ events and procurement strategy; and

 work with Nottingham Trent and Nottingham University to provide work 
experience programmes.

28.25 A requirement to enter into a local labour agreement will form part of the s.106 
agreement. 

28.26 The development is anticipated to create positive economic impacts for the borough 
including an increase in the number of economically active persons. Total 
expenditure from all residents is expected to be £27.8million per annum. Minor 
employment benefits are also expected through Phase 2 of the development, due to 
the local centre uses.  

29 Minerals

29.1 The Nottinghamshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan was adopted in 2005 and 
guides the development of minerals and waste facilities in the non-unitary areas of 
the County. Although the proposed development is not for minerals and waste 
related development it does nevertheless occupy part of the former site of Gedling 
Colliery and also contains a former household waste and recycling centre. The site is 
not identified in the Minerals and Waste Plan as falling within a minerals 
safeguarding zone or consultation area.

Page 81



29.2 However, the County Council, as the MPA for the area, highlighted that in line with 
the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 143) the emerging Minerals 
Local Plan (Submission Draft, consultation Feb 2016) sets out a policy (DM13) 
concerning the site area. DM13 requires that applicants for planning permission to 
demonstrate that the non-minerals development will not unnecessarily sterilise the 
mineral resource in the area. Where this cannot be demonstrated, or where the need 
for the non-mineral development is clear and demonstrable, the County Council 
require that the practicality of prior extraction be fully investigated. The County 
Council acknowledges that the proposed residential development would not be 
inappropriate in this location providing there is a sound argument that identifies a 
clear and demonstrable need for the non-minerals development. 

29.3 Accordingly, the applicant has highlighted why prior extraction is not appropriate in 
this instance. Firstly, the current Minerals and Waste Plan still retains its draft status 
whereas the GBACS represents a more recently adopted development plan 
document. The Chase Farm/former Gedling Colliery site represents a strategic 
housing site which forms a fundamental component of the Borough’s land supply. It 
is felt that appropriate weight must be attached to these conflicting designations in 
terms of the status of the respective plans and the strategic implications of any 
decision which overrides another conflicting policy.

29.4 Given that this site is of strategic importance to fulfilling Gedling Borough’s housing 
land supply, that it facilities the construction of the GAR, offers a new school, local 
community centre and delivers associated socio-economic benefits, this is 
considered to substantially outweigh the merits of retaining the land for possible 
mineral extraction for which no planning application has ever been made. 
Furthermore, as the proposed development site is located on the urban fringe and 
the current permitted reserves for the Dorket Head brickworks will last until 2034, 
prior extraction at Chase Farm would not be appropriate in this instance.

29.5 The County Council have reviewed such rationale and has subsequently agreed that 
prior extraction is not feasible. Therefore there are no minerals issues with the 
delivery of the site for housing.

30 Heritage / Archaeology

30.1 The NPPF has a number of core principles at paragraph 17, one of  which states that 
planning should conserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their 
significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of 
this and future generations. It is my opinion the development would not affect the 
setting of any listed buildings or locally listed buildings given the significant distances 
to the designated assets. The closest Grade II building is All Hallows Church which 
is located some 880 metres from the nearest residential dwelling to be built. 

Page 82



30.2 It is not anticipated that there are any highly sensitive archaeological remains under 
the site, however there is potential for as yet unrecorded important archaeology to be 
present. In line with comments received from the County Council, it is suggested that 
a geophysical survey is undertaken prior to the commencement of any development, 
which can be secured by condition. 

31 Viability

31.1 The National Planning Policy Framework policy on viability states that decision-
taking on individual schemes does not normally require an assessment of viability; 
however, viability can be important where planning obligations or other costs are 
being introduced. Where the viability of a development is in question, local planning 
authorities are encouraged by the NPPF to look to be flexible in applying policy 
requirements wherever possible.

31.2 The viability of the development has been independently assessed by the District 
Valuer and they are content that the costs assigned to the scheme are appropriate. 
Given the contributions required by the scheme to CIL, the GAR (via the terms of the 
tender awarded by the HCA) and other S106 requirements, an on-site affordable 
housing contribution of 10% is deemed appropriate, as set out previously.

32 Other considerations

32.1 Comments were received relating to the land to the north of the application site, 
which is currently allocated for employment use. The application would not prejudice 
this site from later development for employment uses. There are opportunities 
through the reserved matters application(s) relating to Phase 2 to look at the two 
sites holistically and improve connectivity for both sites through to the Gedling 
Country Park. 

32.2 Comments were also received highlighting concerns over the impact on the 
Pepperpots site where 3rd Woodthorpe Scout Group are based. This application will 
not impact on the Pepperpots site, with impacts on the site related to the GAR which 
has previously received planning permission.

32.3 I note the comments received regarding the neighbourhood consultation area. 
During the processing of the application 641 individual residential dwellings were 
notified of the application and the revised details, press notices were posted in the 
local press and 8 site notices were posted. I consider that the scope of consultation 
complies with the statutory requirements and sufficient consultation has been 
undertaken to notify interested parties.  

32.4 I note the comments received regarding the foul drainage from the site, however; 
details relating to such matters need separate approval from Severn Trent Water. 

Page 83



Flood Risk and Drainage has been considered in Section 18. 
 

33 Conclusion 

 
33.1 I consider that, on balance, and taking into account the benefits that would be 

generated as a result of this proposal, it would constitute a sustainable form of 
development. In reaching this conclusion I have had regard to paragraph 98 of the 
NPPF which advises that when determining planning applications, local planning 
authorities should approve the application if impacts are, or can be made, 
acceptable. Given the considerations set out in chapters 14.0 – 32.4, above, I 
consider that it has been demonstrated that, on balance, the planning impacts have 
been addressed and have therefore been made acceptable, or that such impacts are 
outweighed by the benefits that result from the scheme. 

33.2 In conclusion, the development is considered acceptable for the following reasons: 

 The principle of residential development on the site is supported in 
policy. 

 The development will deliver local housing need, contributing 
significantly to Gedling’s requirement to deliver 7,250 homes by 2028. 

 The development is located on brownfield land, avoiding/ lessening the 
need for green belt release in order to deliver the Borough’s housing 
needs, and forms a natural urban extension to Nottingham’s urban 
boundary. 

 The development will support the delivery of the GAR – a much need 
piece of local highway infrastructure. Equally, the GAR will ensure that 
traffic impacts generated by the development do not over-burden the 
local road network. 

 Residential amenity will not be significantly adversely affected, although 
it is considered there may be some impact on amenity during the 
demolition / construction phase, which will be controlled through the 
implementation of safeguarding conditions.

 With ‘further information’, the Environmental Statement is considered to 
be a reasonable assessment of the likely significant environmental 
effects of the proposals and provides a suitable basis for assessment. 
Subject to mitigation measures and safeguarding conditions being 
implemented it is considered that the development would be acceptable 
environmentally.

 Whilst existing trees and green spaces will be remove as a consequence 
of urban development, the site provides a generous green framework 
and retains much of historic tree belt that runs along the old mineral 
railway line. 

Page 84



 The scheme delivers community infrastructure, including a primary 
school, local shops and health centre, to support the establishment of a 
new community. 

Recommendation:

34.1 That the Borough Council GRANTS FULL AND OUTLINE PLANNING 
PERMISSION, subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Agreement 
with the Borough Council as local planning authority and with the County 
Council as local highway and education authority for the provision of, or 
financial contributions towards Affordable Housing, Open Space, Healthcare 
Facilities, Highways, Educational, Air Quality, a Local Labour Agreement and 
Library Facilities; and subject to the indicative conditions listed in the draft 
decision notice attached for the reasons set out in the report;

34.2 That the power to determine the final details of the terms of the conditions of the 
planning permission be delegated to the Chief Executive; 

34.3 That Councillors are satisfied that Regulation 122(2) Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with, in that the planning obligation sought 
is (a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms, (b) 
directly related to the development and (c) fairly and reasonably related in 
scale and kind to the development; and

34.4 That Councillors are also satisfied that Regulation 123 Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 is complied with.

Conditions

 1 Development within Phase 1A hereby permitted shall be begun no later than 3 
years from the date of this permission. Subject to the requirements of 
condition 3 below, development within Phase 1B hereby permitted shall be 
begun no later than 5 years from the date of this permission or within six 
months of completion of the Gedling Access Road, whichever is the later.

 2 Application(s) for approval of all reserved matters for Phase 2 shall be made 
to the local planning authority no later than 7 years from the date of this 
permission, and the development thereby authorised for Phase 2 shall be 
begun no later than 9 years from the date of this permission or 2 years from 
the date of the approval of the final reserved matter, whichever is the later.

 3 No more than 315 homes shall be constructed on the application site (to be 

Page 85



located within Phase 1A identified on the agreed Phasing Plan xxx) prior to 
the completion of the Gedling Access Road (approved under GBC ref 
2015/1033). No development shall commence in Phase 1B prior to the 
completion of the Gedling Access Road. No development for Phase 2 shall 
commence until a phasing programme for Phase 2, including timings for 
development of the neighbourhood centre, public open space, education 
provision and off-site highways works, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority.

 4 Development of Phase 1a and 1b shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following drawings and documents and such other plans, and documents as 
may be approved pursuant to the conditions of this planning permission 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority:

 5 Before any part of Phase 2 of the development hereby approved is 
commenced approval shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority with 
respect to reserved matters, namely, the appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale and internal access roads for the relevant part.

 6 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in 
accordance with the measures detailed in the agreed Travel Plan reference 
21410/12-15/4153 REV B (March 2016) unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.

 7 No dwelling shall be occupied within a Phase unless the measures set out in 
the agreed Travel Plan (March 2016) are in place and a Travel Plan 
Coordinator has been appointed. A monitoring period will be required from 
first occupation to the date 5 years from 50% occupation of a Phase. A review 
must take place with the local planning authority and the highway authority 
after three years from first occupation within the monitoring period. The Travel 
Plan Coordinator shall produce an Annual Monitoring Report during the 
course of the monitoring period commencing on the first anniversary of first 
occupation of a Phase, and shall issue this to the local planning authority and 
the highway authority. Survey forms for residents shall be created in liaison 
with the highway authority with the first surveys to be conducted 3 months 
from the date of first occupation of a Phase.

 8 No development shall be occupied unless or until footway and 
pedestrian/cycle crossing points as shown for indicative  purposes only on the 
plan drawing reference 21410_08_010_01 have been provided to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

 9 No development shall commence on any part of the site unless and until 

Page 86



details of Traffic Calming on ROAD01 and ROAD06 and a timetable for 
implementation have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. The details approved shall thereafter be implemented in accordance 
with the approved timetable.

10 Prior to Public Transport servicing of the development, bus infrastructure in 
the form of raised bus kerbs/shelters/bus stops/lighting/timetable information 
is to be implemented. Details of any such infrastructure are to be submitted 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Once approved the 
development shall be constructed strictly in accordance with these details and 
retained as such for the life of the development unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

11 No part of the development in Phase 2 shall be occupied or brought into use 
unless or until details of the internal layout for the development as indicated 
on the illustrative Site Master Plan Ref 1 4052-P101 REV J have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. These shall be designed in 
accordance with the principles set out in 'Manual for Streets' and the 6C's 
Highway Design Guidance. The development shall thereafter be implemented 
strictly in accordance with the approved details.

12 Prior to the commencement of any phase of development, (including 
remediation works) a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
for that phase. The CEMP shall include details of: the limit and height of 
stockpiling of materials and interim ground treatment; Storage of building 
materials, equipment and plant; Temporary landscaping; Construction 
drainage; Measures to control vibration, noise and dust emissions; Measures 
to protect retained vegetation, protected and other species and the control of 
invasive species; Full details of all materials to be imported to, or exported 
from the site including measures to manage soil movement; Fencing for the 
duration of site works; Proposed routing of construction traffic, including 
proposed site access arrangements and access points for construction traffic; 
Loading and unloading of materials and plant; Storage of materials and plant 
and materials for use during construction; Details of method to treat and 
remove suspended solids from surface water run-off during construction; 
Provision of wheel cleaning facilities; a Construction workers compound; and 
parking areas including oil and petrol separators. The approved scheme shall 
be implemented in full for the duration of that phase of the development and 
no construction activity or work on site shall be undertaken except during the 
following times: Monday to Friday 0700 to 1800 hours and Saturday 1000 to 
1600 hours. 

Page 87



13 No phase of development shall take place until a detailed surface water 
drainage scheme for the site has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority for that phase, based on sustainable drainage 
principles and an assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context 
of the development. Your attention is brought to the informative below 
outlining detailed requirements of the surface water drainage scheme. The 
scheme shall subsequently be implemented strictly in accordance with the 
approved details before occupation of that phase of development and shall be 
retained for the life of the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.

14 No development within a phase shall commence until drainage plans for the 
disposal of foul sewage within that phase have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be 
implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details prior to 
occupation of that phase of development.

15 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
development within a phase must not commence until an assessment of the 
nature and extent of any potential contamination has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This assessment must be 
undertaken by a competent person, and shall assess any contamination on 
the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The assessment must include; 
a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination and; an assessment 
of the potential risks to: human health, property, adjoining land, controlled 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments. 
Where the above assessment indicates that contamination may be present, a 
detailed remediation scheme (to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 
intended use by removing unacceptable risks to critical receptors) for the 
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, 
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, an appraisal of 
remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s), and a timetable of 
works and site management procedures.

16 In the event that remediation is required to render the development suitable 
for use, the remediation scheme approved pursuant to condition 15 shall be 
implemented strictly in accordance with the approved timetable of works. Prior 
to occupation of any building(s) a Verification Report (that demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the remediation carried out) must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

17 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 

Page 88



approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in 
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority and once the Local 
Planning Authority has identified the part of the site affected by the 
unexpected contamination development must be halted on that part of the 
site. An assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements 
of condition 15 above, and where remediation is necessary a remediation 
scheme, together with a timetable for its implementation and verification 
reporting, must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented strictly in 
accordance with the approved timetable.

18 All landscaping must be implemented strictly in accordance with the 
landscaping plans (xxx), including the landscape maintenance. Prior to 
occupation of any dwellings within a phase, a detailed planting timescale shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to 
identify the phasing of planting within the development. The planting shall 
thereafter be undertaken in accordance with the timescale approved pursuant 
to this condition.

19 (a) No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any 
retained tree be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. Any topping or lopping approved shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with British Standard [3998 (Tree Work)].(b) If any retained tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at the 
same place and that tree shall be of such size and species, and shall be 
planted at such time, as may be specified in writing by the local planning 
authority.(c) The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree 
shall be undertaken strictly in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to 
the site for the purposes of the development, and shall be maintained until all 
equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the 
site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with 
this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, 
nor shall any excavation be made, without the prior written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority.

20 Any trees or other plants, which die, are removed or become seriously 
damaged or diseased within the first five years following planting shall be 
replaced during the next planting season with others of similar size or species 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

21 No development within any phase shall take place until details of earthworks 

Page 89



for that phase have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. These details shall include the proposed grading and 
mounding of land areas including the  finished levels across the site (including 
finished floor levels, path and road levels and height of retaining walls) and 
contours to be formed, showing the relationship of proposed mounding to 
existing vegetation and surrounding landform. Dwellings either side of an 
access road should have a floor slab level at least 300mm above the adjacent 
access road. The development shall thereafter be implemented strictly in 
accordance with the approved details.

22 Prior to the commencement of development in Phase 1B or Phase 2, an 
updated Ecological Impact Assessment shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. The assessment 
shall include an updated Phase 1 Habitat Survey and protected species 
surveys for the site area. Thereafter works shall be undertaken strictly in 
accordance with the mitigation recommended within the EcIA for the phase. 
No site clearance or removal of any trees, shrubs or other vegetation shall be 
carried out during the period 1 March to 31 August inclusive unless otherwise 
agreed in writing in advance with the Local Planning Authority. Any clearance 
works within this period shall be supervised by an Ecological Clerk of Works.

23 No site clearance or removal of any trees, shrubs or other vegetation shall be 
carried out during the period 1 March to 31 August inclusive unless otherwise 
agreed in writing in advance with the Local Planning Authority. Any clearance 
works within this period must be supervised by an Ecological Clerk of Works 
and the works agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
works commencing.

24 No development shall commence within a phase until a landscape 
management plan for that phase has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include details of 
enhancements to retained habitats on the site, and also provide details of the 
long-term management of the retained habitats of the site. Thereafter such 
works shall be undertaken strictly in accordance with the approved landscape 
management plan for the relevant phase unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.

25 No phase of the site shall be occupied unless glazing and ventilation 
mitigation for that phase has been implemented in line with the strategy 
outlined in Chapters 6 and 7 of the Noise Assessment (November 2015). This 
shall include the adoption of the enhanced glazing and ventilation to those 
properties outlined in sketch plans SK05 and SK05b.

Page 90



26 Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development of 
each phase shall not commence until an assessment of the air quality impacts 
(including exposure) of the proposal has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The level of assessment should be 
commensurate with the scale of development and should characterise the 
significance of the impact from all sources. The assessment should be carried 
out in accordance with relevant guidance by suitably qualified persons. 
Measures required mitigating the air quality impacts of each Phase of 
development should be agreed by the Local Planning Authority and 
implemented prior to the occupation of any building. The measures shall 
thereafter be retained for the life of the development.

27 No development shall take place within any phase of the development until 
the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological works for the relevant phase in accordance with a written 
scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The WSI  shall include: the results of a 
geophysical survey; the statement of significance and research objectives; the 
programme and methodology of site investigation and recording and the 
nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed 
works; the programme for further mitigation, post-investigation assessment; 
and subsequent analysis, publication & dissemination and deposition of 
resulting material. The agreed scheme shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

28 Prior to the commencement of development within a phase, there shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: (1) 
cross-sections and contour plans showing details of the existing and proposed 
site levels in relation to adjacent properties, including finished floor levels for 
the residential development, for that phase; and (2) an assessment of any site 
slope stability issues the development may have with respect to the creation 
of ponds and any special stabilisation measures that are required to mitigate 
slope stability issues for that phase.  Each phase of the development shall be 
implemented strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing in advance by the Local Planning Authority.

Reasons

 1 In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 and Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

 2 In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Page 91



Act 2004 and Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

 3 To ensure that the development is delivered in accordance with the phasing 
plan and Transport Assessment submitted with the application. To limit the 
number of completed dwellings prior to the completion of the Gedling Access 
Road. For the avoidance of doubt and to accord with the aims of Policy ENV1 
of the Gedling Borough Council Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies 
Saved 2014).

 4 For the avoidance of doubt.

 5 In order to comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 and Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

 6 To ensure that sustainable travel is encouraged and implemented in 
accordance with the aims of the National Planning Policy Guidance (March 
2014).

 7 To ensure that sustainable travel is encouraged and implemented in 
accordance with the aims of the National Planning Policy Guidance (March 
2014).

 8 In the interests of pedestrian and cycle safety and to accord with the aims of 
Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain 
Policies Saved 2014).

 9 In the interests of highway safety and to accord with the aims of Policy ENV1 
of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 
2014).

10 In order to secure adequate public transport linkages to the site and promote 
sustainable transport.

11 In the interests of highway safety and to  accord with the aims of Policy ENV1 
of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 
2014).

12 To protect the residential amenity of the area in accordance with the aims of 
Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 10 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).

13 To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect water quality; 
to improve habitat and amenity; and to ensure the future maintenance of 

Page 92



sustainable drainage structures, in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policies 1 and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for 
Gedling Borough (September 2014).

14 To ensure adequate measures are in place to deal with foul sewage on the 
development site.

15 To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain 
or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance 
with the aims of Policies ENV1 and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough 
Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

16 To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain 
or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance 
with the aims of Policies ENV1 and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough 
Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

17 To ensure that practicable and effective measures are taken to treat, contain 
or control any contamination and to protect controlled waters in accordance 
with the aims of Policies ENV1 and ENV3 of the Gedling Borough 
Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

18 To ensure a satisfactory development and that the landscaping of the 
development accords with Policy 10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling 
Borough (September 2014) and Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough 
Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014).

19 In the interests of good Arboricultural practice.

20 In the interests of good Arboricultural practice.

21 To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect water quality; 
to improve habitat and amenity; and to ensure the future maintenance of 
sustainable drainage structures, in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policies 1 and 17 of the Aligned Core Strategy for 
Gedling Borough (September 2014).

22 To protect and enhance ecology interest in the area and to accord with 
paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

23 To protect and enhance ecology interest in the area and to accord with 
paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Page 93



24 To protect and enhance ecology interest in the area and to accord with 
paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

25 To protect the residential amenity of the area in accordance with the aims of 
Section 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy 10 of the 
Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014).

26 To prevent any undue impact on air quality that may arise with the 
development, in accordance with the aims of Policy ENV11 of Gedling 
Borough Council Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014)

27 To ensure a satisfactory programme of archaeological work has been 
approved to ensure that the development is constructed in accordance of the 
impacts defined within the Environmental Statement.

28 To ensure a satisfactory development in accordance with the aims of Policy 
10 of the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) and 
Policy ENV1 of the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain 
Policies Saved 2014).

Reasons for Decision

The development has been considered in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework, the Aligned Core Strategy for Gedling Borough (September 2014) 
and the Gedling Borough Replacement Local Plan (Certain Policies Saved 2014), 
where appropriate.  In the opinion of the Borough Council, the proposed 
development largely accords with the relevant policies of these frameworks and 
plans.  Where the development conflicts with the Development Plan, it is the opinion 
of the Borough Council that other material considerations indicate that permission 
should be granted.  The benefits of granting the proposal outweigh any adverse 
impact of departing from the Development Plan.

Notes to Applicant

It is an offence under S148 and S151 of the Highways Act 1980 to deposit mud on 
the public highway and as such you should undertake every effort to prevent it 
occurring.

The applicant should note that notwithstanding any planning permission that if any 
highway forming part of the development is to be adopted by the Highways Authority. 
The new roads and any highway drainage will be required to comply with the 
Nottinghamshire County Council's current highway design guidance and 
specification for roadworks.

Page 94



The Advanced Payments Code in the Highways Act 1980 applies and under section 
219 of the Act payment will be required from the owner of the land fronting a private 
street on which a new building is to be erected.  The developer should contact the 
Highway Authority with regard to compliance with the Code, or alternatively to the 
issue of a Section 38 Agreement and bond under the Highways Act 1980.  A Section 
38 Agreement can take some time to complete. Therefore, it is recommended that 
the developer contact the Highway Authority as early as possible.

It is strongly recommended that the developer contact the Highway Authority at an 
early stage to clarify the codes etc. with which compliance will be required in the 
particular circumstance, and it is essential that design calculations and detailed 
construction drawings for the proposed works are submitted to and approved by the 
County Council (or District Council) in writing before any work commences on site.

In order to carry out the off-site works required you will be undertaking work in the 
public highway which is land subject to the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 (as 
amended) and therefore land over which you have no control.  In order to undertake 
the works you will need to enter into an agreement under Section 278 of the Act. 
Please contact the Highway Authority for details.

The detailed surface water drainage scheme to be submitted shall:  - require all flows 
to be attenuated to Qbar for the entire site;- include provision for the entire site to be 
drained to the surface water drainage system with appropriate run-off coefficients or 
other factors used to represent the differing run off characteristics of the various 
parts of the site;- include an exceedance check using microdrainage software to 
simulate the drainage system for the 100year + 30% climate change event for a 
range of durations from 15 minutes to 24 hours to assess where the drainage system 
may flood. If this occurs, provision must be made for the accumulated volumes and 
flows to be directed to the surface water attenuation areas; - demonstrate that the 
surface water drainage system is designed in accordance with CIRIA C635 and 
C753, and the National SUDS Standards;- demonstrate detailed design (plans, 
network details and calculations) in support of any surface water drainage scheme, 
including details of any attenuation system, and outfall arrangements. Calculations 
should demonstrate the performance of the designed system for a range of return 
periods and storm durations inclusive of the 1 in 1 year, 1 in 2 year, 1 in 30 year, 1 in 
100 year plus climate change return periods;- confirm how on-site surface water 
drainage systems will be adopted and maintained in perpetuity to ensure long term 
operation at the designed parameters.

Public sewers have statutory protection by virtue of the Water Industry Act 1991, as 
amended by the Water Act 2003, and you may not build close to, directly over or 
divert a public sewer without consent.  You are advised to contact Severn Trent 

Page 95



Water to discuss your proposals.  Severn Trent Water will seek to assist you in 
obtaining a solution which protects both the public sewer and the proposed 
development.  If you require further information, please contact Severn Trent Water 
on 0116 234 3834.

The Borough Council requests that the applicant considers incorporating provision 
for residential dwellings (with dedicated parking) to have dedicated outside electric 
power points, to allow residents to charge electric/hybrid vehicles into the future (see 
IET Code of Practice for EV Charging Equipment Installation).

The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain 
unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining feature is encountered 
during development, this should be reported immediately to The Coal Authority on 
0845 762   6848. Further information is also available on The Coal Authority website 
at www.coal.decc.gov.uk.Property specific summary information on past, current and 
future coal mining activity can be obtained from The Coal Authority's Property 
Search Service on 0845 762 6848 or at www.groundstability.com.

The Borough Council has worked positively and proactively with the applicant, in 
accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework, based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing 
with the planning application.  This has been achieved by meeting the applicant to 
discuss issues raised, providing details of issues raised in consultation responses; 
requesting clarification, additional information or drawings in response to issues 
raised; and providing updates on the application's progress.

Date Recommended: 9th May 2016

Page 96



Report to Planning Committee

Application Number: 2014/0740

Location: Spring Lane, Mapperley

Proposal: Residential Development (Up to 150 Dwellings)

Summary 

Authorisation is sought by the Corporate Director/Service Manager for Housing to 
instruct the Service Manager for Legal Services to enter into a Deed of Variation to 
vary the Planning Obligation dated 22nd May 2015 that requires, amongst other 
things, the provision of 30 units of Affordable Housing on the above site. 

The Developers are asking the Council to agree to enter into a Deed of Variation to 
include a new clause which relates to the mortgagee in possession and is required to 
ensure that in the rare event that the Housing Association was declared bankrupt, 
the mortgagor would be able to sell the property to protect their investment.

This new clause will also relate to those tenants who choose to exercise their right to 
acquire, as without it, they would also not be able to access a mortgage.  

Background 

Clauses 4.2 and 4.3 of the current Planning Obligation specify the following 
requirements:

“4.2 Upon the transfer by a Registered Provider of a freehold interest or a term of 
years in any unit of the Affordable Housing pursuant to a statutory right or the terms 
of a shared ownership lease or shared equity lease to acquire that interest or term, 
the unit of Affordable Housing shall by operation of this clause be automatically 
released from the obligations contained within Schedule Two to this Agreement.”

“4.3 The provisions of this Agreement shall not be binding on a mortgagee of any 
unit of the Affordable Housing or on any person deriving title from such mortgagee or 
any successor in title.”

It is proposed that the Principal Agreement be varied in the following matter:

1. Clause 4.2 of the Principal Agreement shall be deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following:

“4.2 Upon the transfer by a Registered Provider of a freehold interest or a term of 
years in any unit of the Affordable Housing pursuant to a statutory right to buy or 

Page 97

Agenda Item 5.



acquire or the terms of a shared ownership lease or shared equity lease to aquire 
that interest or term, the unit of Affordable Housing shall by operation of this clause 
be automatically released from the obligations contained within Schedule Two to this 
Agreement".

2. Clause 4.3 of the Principal Agreement shall be deleted and replaced with the 
following:

“4.3 The provisions of this Agreement shall not be binding on a mortgagee or 
chargee or any receiver or manager (including an administrative receiver) appointed 
pursuant to the Law of Property Act 1925 of any unit of the Affordable Housing or on 
any person deriving title from such mortgagee chargee receiver or manager or any 
successors in title thereto".

3. The inclusion of the following as a new Clause 4.6:

“The provisions of this Agreement (other than those set out in Schedule Two relating 
to the provision of Affordable Housing) shall not be enforceable against any 
Registered Provider or any chargee, mortgagee, receiver or manager (including an 
administrative receiver) appointed pursuant to the Law of Property Act 1925 of the 
Registered Provider” 

In clause 13.1 of Schedule Two of the Principal Agreement the words "and without 
payment of a premium" shall be deleted.

Considerations

There are no financial implications to the Council, and no planning considerations in 
that there would be no physical or aesthetic changes to the development 
whatsoever.

Recommendation:

That the Corporate Director/Service Manager for Housing  be authorised to instruct 
the Service Manager for Legal Services to undertake the necessary work to prepare 
and finalise a Deed of Variation to the Planning Obligation lodged with the Borough 
Council dated 22nd May 2015, in relation to the development permitted by Planning 
Permission no: 2014/0740.

Page 98



Report to Planning Committee

Subject: Tree Preservation Order, Whittingham Road. 

Date: 18 May 2016  

Author: David Gray – Principal Planning Officer.

1. Purpose of the Report

At the Council meeting held on 20 April 2016 a petition was presented, under the 
Council’s Petitions Scheme, entitled ‘We the undersigned, support the application, 
& implementation, of a Tree Preservation Order, on the 46 year old tree, in the 
bottom right-hand corner of the garden of 34 Whittingham Road, Mapperley, 
Nottingham, NG3 6BJ. 

Council determined that the matter should be referred to the Planning Committee.

This report sets out background to the issue and the Planning Committee is 
requested to determine whether a Tree Preservation Order should be granted.

2.0 Background

2.1 The Council received a petition containing 263 signatures and reading, as follows:

‘We the undersigned, support the application, & implementation, of a Tree 
Preservation Order, on the 46 year old tree, in the bottom right-hand corner of the 
garden of 34 Whittingham Road, Mapperley, Nottingham, NG3 6BJ.

The TPO should be applied because: 

The Oak tree is of high amenity value within the streetscene. 

As an acorn of the Major Oak, it is deserving of recognition, protection & 
preservation’

2.2 Further information

To assist Members in determining the application the following material facts are 
provided:

A request has been made to the Planning Department as the Local Authority to 
make an Order to protect a tree within the rear garden of 34 Whittingham Road. 

Page 99

Agenda Item 6.



An accompanying letter providing further information from the petition organiser is 
attached to this report as Appendix 1. 

Advice given from the Planning Department is that authorities can make Tree 
Preservation Orders if it appears ‘expedient in the interests of amenity to make 
provision for the preservation of trees or woodlands in their area’. 

The following advice was received from the Nottinghamshire County Council 
Arboricultural Officer:

“The tree was visually inspected from the highway and within the garden area of the 
property. The following observations were recorded: 

Species – Oak
Age – Early Mature
Condition – Good: I could not see that the tree had any significant physiological or 
structural defects and appears in good health. The crown was not symmetrical due 
to proximity of an adjacent mature sycamore tree.

Position/ visibility – The tree is only partially visible from Whittingham Road and 
Sandford Road once stood between properties. Also the tree isn’t identifiable from 
the surrounding trees / vegetation due to the close proximities of other mature trees.

Wider impact – If the tree was removed for whatever reason, I believe this would 
not have an impact on the local surroundings as the tree is growing within the rear 
garden of the property.

I would recommend that the tree is not protected with a Tree Preservation Order.”

2.3 Considerations: 

When considering whether trees should be protected by an Order, authorities are 
advised to assess the amenity value of the trees in a structured and consistent way, 
taking into account the following criteria: 

Visibility

The extent to which the trees or woodlands can be seen by the public will inform the 
authority’s assessment of whether the impact on the local environment is 
significant. The trees, or at least part of them, should normally be visible from a 
public place, such as a road or footpath, or accessible by the public.

Individual, collective and wider impact

Public visibility alone will not be sufficient to warrant an Order. The authority is 
advised to also assess the particular importance of an individual tree, of groups of 
trees or of woodlands by reference to its or their characteristics including: 

Page 100



 Size and form; 
 Future potential as an amenity;
 Rarity, cultural or historical value;
 Contribution to, and relationship with the landscape; and 
 Contribution to the character and appearance of a conservation area. 

Other Factors 

Where relevant to an assessment of the amenity value of trees or woodlands, 
authorities may consider taking into account other factors, such as importance to 
nature conservation or response to climate change. These factors alone would not 
warrant making an Order. 

2.4 Officer Recommendation: 

It is recommended that a Tree Preservation Order is not granted for the following 
reasons.

In the opinion of the planning department, due to the location of the tree in a rear 
amenity area of a private dwelling, the less than substantial extent to which the tree 
can be seen by the public in the area, and the tree’s size and form the tree would 
not warrant an order in this instance. 

3. Resource Implications

There are no direct resource implications arising from this report.

4. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Supporting Information for Committee. 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                    
JANUARY & FEBRUARY 2016 

           

 

OAK 

GIVES AN IDEA OF 

RELATIVE TRUNK SIZE. 

Page 103



 

 

OAK 

VIEW FROM OUR 1st FLOOR BACK 
BEDROOM, SANDFORD ROAD. WE 
ARE ½ WAY BETWEEN SANDFORD 

& BENNETT. 

Page 104



 
 
 
 
 
 

OAK

K 

VIEW FROM OUR LOUNGE SIDE 
WINDOW (GROUND FLOOR) 
SANDFORD ROAD. WE ARE ½ 
WAY BETWEEN SANDFORD & 

BENNETT. 

Page 105



 
 

 
 

 

OAK 

 

 

 
 

OAK 

OAK 

VIEW FROM 2nd HOUSE DOWN, BELOW WHITTINGHAM & 

HAYWOOD ROADS JUNCTION. 

APPROACHING THE JUNCTION OF SANDFORD & WHITTINGHAM RDS. 
Page 106



 

 
 

 

 

OAK 

OAK 

34, WHITTINGHAM (red car in drive) 

SANDFORD ROAD, JUST PAST THE 

JUNCTION WITH WHITTINGHAM; 

WALKING TOWARDS ROBINSON. 

Page 107



 
 

 
 

OAK 

OAK 

WALKING ALONG SANDFORD, TOWARDS ROBINSON. 

JUNCTION OF HILTON & 
WHITTINGHAM ROADS 

56 

Page 108



 
 
 

 

 

 

OAK 

OAK 

JUST PAST HILTON & WHITTINGHAM JUNCTION, 

WALKING TOWARDS ROBINSON ROAD. 

75, HILTON ROAD 

Page 109



 
 

 

 

 

OAK 

2/3 WAY BETWEEN WHITTINGHAM & 

ROBINSON RDS, ON HILTON ROAD. 

75 

SEPTEMBER 2015 

OAK 

Page 110



__________________________________________________________________           _____________________ 

_________HAYWOOD ROAD_______________________________________          ____________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75 

34 

56 

     68 
SANDFORD 
4th house 
along from 

junction 

Oak 

PICS 
TAKEN 
FROM 
HERE, 
SHOWING 
WHEN OAK 
1st COMES 
INTO VIEW 

Page 111



 

Purple Circles represent 56 & 68, Sandford Road & 75, Hilton Road. 
 
Purple Triangle represents the spot where photos were taken, just below the 
Haywood Road junction. 
 
Green Smiley is the Oak Tree. 
 
 
Red Star is 34, Whittingham Road. 
 
 
 
MY SPEECH FROM THE FULL COUNCIL MEETING, WEDNESDAY 20th APRIL ’16  
 

Having referred the audience to the copies of correspondence available to them, online, in 

preparation for the Meeting, I went straight in with picking up a point on the agenda…… 

Point 2:6 ~ With respect, I have to challenge these comments date from 3rd June 2015, when the 

garden was overgrown. Since then 2.5k has been spent in having trees felled & pollarded & I did 

explain that this was going to happen. This is supported by photos, submitted with letters & emails, 

along the way. 

The sycamore trees have been severely pollarded, as the neighbours were eager to help. 

Contrary to the notes regarding the tree’s visibility, it can be clearly seen from 3 streets, namely Hilton, 

Sandford & Whittingham, without having to stand between properties. It becomes visible from just 

below the Haywood/Whittingham junction, when one is next to what was Councillor Lightowler’s house. 

Two blocks of flats, built in the Councillor’s garden, benefit from seeing the oak in their eye-line, as well 

as many other properties. I have submitted photos. It’s one of the tallest trees in quite a large area & is 

definitely the tallest tree in its little copse, so I was puzzled to read that it’s “indefinable”. 

I believe its removal would have a detrimental & significant effect on the area & I strongly believe that 

the petition backs up this theory. 

Page 112



If it were in the street, or front garden, a tree of this size would likely be a nuisance with its 

overhanging branches & roots, plus be a structural threat to property. I believe it fulfils the visibility 

criteria (under point 2:7) where it says, “The trees, or at least part of them, should normally be visible 

from a public place, such as a road, or footpath.” 

In the “giant noughts & crosses board” of the surrounding streets, it’s easy to spot the original houses 

on the block & visualise what land belonged to which; I live in such a house, on Sandford Road, from 

where I can see the oak tree. Five dwellings, in addition to our 1902 house, have been built on our 

house’s land. In doing so, many trees were felled, including a large orchard, which I used to pass on 

my way to school, when I lived on Hilton. Lots of mature trees have been felled within a small area, 

including some street trees, so to say he would be more worthy of a TPO if he were on the street, or in 

a front garden, doesn’t seem to suggest his future would be more secure than where he is, where he’s 

no bother to anyone, the tallest copse member in a “green living space”, to quote one neighbour’s 

comments, about the garden. 

When the house went on the market, back in Sept, we had 32 viewings in 4 days. The agents were 

overwhelmed, as was I. It was the garden that was the attraction. The allotment cottage history & the 

tree history, were what sold it; we had “bidding wars”. When the sale fell through, in early December, 

due to the initial buyer’s change in circumstances, it sold again within half a day, for £15,000 more 

than the baseline guide price; once again, it was because of the garden, the history & the oak tree. 

Neighbours have asked what they can do to help secure a TPO. The new owners offered to “take up 

the fight”. Near neighbours rang the Council, back in early Sept, to express concern that the tree was 

being felled. It wasn’t; the sycamores were being pollarded.  

People were delighted & interested to know who owned the tree, when I was door-knocking for 

signatures. It’s enjoyed by far more households & passers-by, than given credit for, plus local people 

feel protective & passionate about it. 

I’ve been speaking with Oliver Newham, of the Woodland Trust & Ben Driver of the Wildlife Trust. Both 

are very interested in the tree; both want to be kept updated. They support points already mentioned in 

my letter, with regard to points raised by signatories, in respect of the exchange of greenhouse gases, 

the ability of the root system to absorb much water, which is significant in this current climate of 

sudden floods & its ability to provide a home for wildlife; there have been many nests over the years. 

Both gentlemen were agreed on how much of an asset he already is & will increasingly be so. Oaks 

have the best biodiversity; they support around 250 species of insects, including caterpillars. By 

contrast, Sycamores support only 15 & Chestnuts about 4. Woodpeckers love them, bats live in the 

crevices of mature oaks, squirrels& birds already use it. The leaf mould supports insects as well. About 

a third of our native species of fungi like to live on oaks. 

This tree is the only 1 of 6 planted to survive & to survive being uprooted from Hilton Rd, to be 

replanted in its current place. I believe the petition & supportive comments by both the Woodland Trust 

& Nottm. Wildlife Trust, prove that the tree IS “of high amenity value in the street scene,” & the 

historical connections, both to Sherwood Forest & my dad, plus factual comments about how beneficial 

he is & will continue to be, as he matures, means he is deserving of a TPO. I would ask that the bigger 

picture be considered & understanding shown for the gardening work undertaken, plus the projection 

of his value as he matures, the opinions of the local people who actually see this tree & live with him, & 

lastly, the interest expressed by the Woodland & Wildlife Trusts.  

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



ACTION SHEET PLANNING DELEGATION PANEL 22nd April 2016

2015/1309
6 Calverton Road Arnold Nottinghamshire
Detached 2 bedroom dwelling

The proposed development would have a detrimental impact on highway safety.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

2016/0060
88 Sheepwalk Lane Ravenshead Nottinghamshire
Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of 4 no. detached dwellings with integral 
garages. Block up existing vehicular access and provide new relocated vehicular access.

Application to be reported back to Panel, following re-consultation.

2016/0182
23 Woodside Road Ravenshead Nottinghamshire
Retention of rear raised decking.

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties. 

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued.

Parish to be notified following issue of decision.                                                               SS                                                                

2016/0231
Castle Mill Bungalow Castle Mill Linby Lane
To erect a proposed glazed porch to the rear of the bungalow.

Application withdrawn from agenda.

2016/0197
31 Castleton Avenue Arnold Nottinghamshire
Proposed 2-storey side and rear extension.

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties or the street scene.

Page 115

Agenda Item 7.



The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued.

2016/0232
75 Sheepwalk Lane Ravenshead Nottinghamshire
Detached Garage

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the character & appearance 
of the Ravenshead Special Character Area, the residential amenity of adjacent properties 
or highway safety. 

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued.

Parish to be notified following issue of decision.                                                               SS                                                                

2016/0239TPO
101 Lambley Lane Burton Joyce Nottinghamshire
Works to protected trees to the rear of 101, Lambley Lane.

Application withdrawn from agenda.

2016/0249
161 Main Street Woodborough Nottinghamshire
Single storey extension and alterations

The proposed development would preserve the amenity of the Woodborough 
Conservation Area & would have no undue impact on this building of Local Interest or on 
the residential amenity of adjacent properties.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

Parish to be notified following issue of decision.                                                               SS                                                                

NM
22nd April 2016

Page 116



ACTION SHEET PLANNING DELEGATION PANEL 29th April 2016

2016/0061
School Bungalow Cherry Close Arnold
Erection of 2.1m high fence behind boundary hedge to School Bungalow from pedestrian 
gate off Cherry Close north to corner on boundary with Redhill Road. Retention of 
vehicular access as existing.

The proposed development, as amended, would have no undue impact on the residential 
amenity of adjacent properties, the streetscene or highway safety.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

2016/0178
16 Cantley Avenue Gedling Nottinghamshire
First Floor Extension to Rear of Existing Dwelling House

The proposed development would have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity 
of the adjacent property.
 
The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued.

2016/0194
7 The Wyndings Woodthorpe Nottinghamshire
Dormered loft conversion including raised roof

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties, the streetscene or highway safety.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued.

Page 117



2016/0245
786 Mansfield Road Daybrook Nottinghamshire
Variation of condition 2 (Planning Ref : 97/0618) to extend the range of goods able to be 
sold from the premises

Application to be reported back to Panel, following receipt of a Retail Impact 
Assessment.

2016/0255
60 Sheepwalk Lane Ravenshead Nottinghamshire
Single storey rear extension.

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

Parish to be notified following issue of decision.                                                               SS                                                                

2016/0260
103 Longdale Lane Ravenshead Nottinghamshire
Single storey extensions to both side and rear of the dwelling. Boundary wall to side 
elevation of garden afronting Quarry Road

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties, the streetscene or highway safety.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued.

2016/0281
51 Main Street Woodborough Nottinghamshire
Ground floor extension to side of house and alterations to existing rear elevation

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties, the streetscene or highway safety.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

Page 118



Parish to be notified following issue of decision.                                                               SS                                                                

2016/0382TPO
9 Birch Close Ravenshead Nottinghamshire
Works to trees

The proposed works would have a detrimental impact on visual amenity of the tree.  

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.                                                

Parish to be notified following issue of decision.                                                               SS                                                                

NM
29th April 2016

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



ACTION SHEET PLANNING DELEGATION PANEL 6th May 2016

2016/0155
786 Mansfield Road Daybrook Nottinghamshire
The installation of a mezzanine floor to measure 1,115 sqm for use as retail floor space

Application to be reported back to Panel, after discussions with Planning Policy on 
retail impact are concluded.

2016/0239TPO
101 Lambley Lane Burton Joyce Nottinghamshire
Works to protected trees to the rear of 101, Lambley Lane.

The proposed works would have no undue impact on the visual amenity of the trees.  

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

Parish to be notified following issue of decision.                                                               SS                                                                

2016/0245
786 Mansfield Road Daybrook Nottinghamshire
Variation of condition 2 (Planning Ref : 97/0618) to extend the range of goods able to be 
sold from the premises

Application to be reported back to Panel, after discussions with Planning Policy on 
retail impact are concluded.

2016/0325
80 Church Drive Daybrook Nottinghamshire
Construction of a timber framed and clad garden annex in the rear of the ground floor flat, 
ancillary use to the ground floor flat

The proposed development would create a new dwelling in an inappropriate location and 
would have a detrimental impact on the residential amenity of adjacent properties. 

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

Page 121



2016/0259
7 Gorman Court Arnold Nottinghamshire
New dwelling forming two semi-detached properties

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties, the streetscene or highway safety.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

2016/0264
Longdale Craft Centre, Longdale Lane, Ravenshead
Outline application for residential development

The proposed development raises complex Green Belt, ecological and arboricultural 
issues.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined by the Planning 
Committee.

2016/0316
11 Villiers Road Woodthorpe Nottinghamshire
Demolition of existing conservatory Single storey rear extensions to existing house and 
garage building. Single story infill extension between existing house & garage.

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties, visual amenity or the Woodthorpe Special Character Area.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued.

2016/0320
16 Revesby Road Woodthorpe Nottinghamshire
Loft Conversion

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties, the streetscene or highway safety.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued.

Page 122



2016/0327
21 Craster Drive Arnold Nottinghamshire
Single storey rear extension

Application withdrawn from agenda.

2016/0331
Danes Close Arnold Nottinghamshire
Site 3 – Demolition of existing garages and construction of 2 No. 2 Bed houses and 1 No. 
3 Bed house with associated external works

Application withdrawn from agenda.

2016/0343
4 Wellington Road Burton Joyce Nottinghamshire
New 4 bed dwelling on land between 4 & 8 Wellington Road, including new drives and 
outbuildings

The proposed development would have no undue impact on the residential amenity of 
adjacent properties, the streetscene or highway safety and would not represent an over-
intensive development.

The Panel recommended that the application be determined under delegated 
authority.

Decision to be issued following completion of paperwork.

Parish to be notified following issue of decision.                                                               SS                                                                

NM
6th May 2016

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Planning Committee

Subject: Future Planning Applications

Date: 18 May 2016

The following planning applications or details have been submitted and are receiving 
consideration.  They may be reported to a future meeting of the Planning Committee 
and are available for inspection online at:  http://pawam.gedling.gov.uk:81/online-
applications/

Alternatively, hard copies may be viewed at Gedling1Stop or by prior arrangement 
with Development Control.

App No Address Proposal Possible 
Date

2014/0273 Land at corner 
Longdale Lane & 
Kighill Lane, 
Ravenshead.

Site for residential development. 22/6/16

2015/0423 Adjacent Goosedale 
Farm, Goosedale 
Lane, Bestwood. 

Erection of nine holiday lodges. 22/6/16

2015/1009 Bestwood Lodge 
Hotel, Bestwood. 

Granite memorial to 9th Duke of 
St Albans.

22/6/16

2015/1301 130B Main Road, 
Ravenshead. 

Detached garage and garage 
conversion. 

22/6/16

2016/0264 Longdale Craft 
Centre, Longdale 
Lane, Ravenshead.

Outline application for 
residential development.

22/6/16

2016/0306 Glebe Farm, Glebe 
Drive, Burton Joyce. 

Outline application for up to 45 
new residential dwellings. 

20/7/16

2016/0414 Adjacent 64 Byron 
Street, Daybrook. 

Erection of 21 residential 
apartments. 

20/7/16

Page 125

Agenda Item 8.

http://pawam.gedling.gov.uk:81/online-applications/
http://pawam.gedling.gov.uk:81/online-applications/


2014/1343 Westhouse Farm, 
Moor Road, 
Bestwood Village. 

New single storey primary 
school. 

24/8/16

Please note that the above list is not exhaustive; applications may be referred at short 
notice to the Committee by the Planning Delegation Panel or for other reasons.  The 
Committee date given is the earliest anticipated date that an application could be 
reported, which may change as processing of an application continues. 

Recommendation:

To note the information.

Page 126


	Agenda
	2. To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 27 April 2016.
	 Planning Committee Protocol.
	4. Application No. 2015/1376- Land at Chase Farm (Former Gedling Colliery), adjacent to Arnold Lane and Land off Lambley Lane, Gedling, Nottinghamshire.
	5. Variation of S106 Planning Obligations- Spring Lane, Lambley
	6. Tree Preservation Order- Whittingham Road, Mapperley.
	Appendix 1

	7. Planning Delegation Panel Action Sheets
	Action Delegation Panel- 29.4.16
	Action Delegation Panel- 6.5.16

	8. Future Planning Applications

